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Severn Trent Plc is a leading environmental services group
providing water, waste and ulility services. Our businesses
include Severn Trent Water, Biffa and Severn Trent Services.

Qur corporate vision is to be at the forefront of the
environmental services industry. Our corporate values
of environmental leadership, service and quality define
our business culture and strategic direction.

We believe that business is part of the process of achieving
a sustainable future for society as a whole,
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Financial highlights

Group profit before tax £m
before exceptional items

Earnings per share pence
befora exceptional items and
deferred tax |

Dividends per share pence
exciuding 1997/98 final
dividend enhancement
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2002 2001 % change

Turnover (£m) -~ 1,794 1,682 6.7

Profit before interest (pre goodwill and exceptionals) (£m) 419 400 4.6

Profit before interest (pre exceptionals) (£m) 392 383 2.5

Profit before interest (post exceptionals) (£m) 375 367 2.2

Profit before tax (pre exceptionals) (Emy) 233 222 5.2

Profit before {ax (post exceptionals) Em) 218 206 4G

Earnings per share {pre exceptionals and deferred tax) (p) 63.2 €10 36

Earnings per share (post exceptionals and deferred tax) (p) 45.9 412 11.4

Gearing (%) 105.1 1052 01

Final dividend (p) 28.56 28.0C 20

Interim dividend {p} 17.34 17.00 2.0

Total equity dividends for the year (p) 4590 45,00 2.0

Exceptional items in 2002, all ansing in Severn Trent Systems, comprise the net cost of a

£25.0 millicn charge to cover the anticipated total costs of cempleting loss making CIS-Open

Vision contracts in the USA and an £8.0 million profit on disposal of Stoner Associates.

Exceptional items in 2001 comprised restructuring costs of £15.5 million in relation to the
restructuring of Biffa Waste Services following the acquisition of UK Waste.




Turnover by business
% of group total in 2001/02

Water 1 £899.9m 48%
Waste 7 £494.Bm 268%
Sarwices 3 £381.6m 20%
Other 4 £105.0m 6%

Number of employees average
4 of group total in 2001/02

Water 1 4,662 32%
Waste 2 3,804 27%
Services 3 4,825 34%
Other 4 981 7%
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Severn Trent at a glance

Severn Trent generates revenues of £1.8 biliion and
employs more than 14,000 people across the UK,
US and Europe. We are increasingly focused on the
industrial and commercial sectors to help business
customers meet environmental objectives.

Water

Severn Trent Water is the group’s regulated water business. It provides
water and sewerage services to more than three million households
and businesses in England and Wales. In 2001, it was rated the UK's
mast admired water company in a survey by Marsgement Today.

Waste

Biffa is the largest single supplier of integrated waste services in
the UK. Through its collection, landfill and special waste treatment
activities, it collects, treats and disposes of municipal and industrial
waste nationatly.

Services

Severn Trent Services supplies products and services associated with
water, wastewater and contaminated land. These include analytical
sarvices, water purification soluticns and operating services, including
pipeline mainienance, for municipal and industrial customers,

Systemns

Severn Trent Systems supplies {T services and software solutions to
utilities, particularly in the areas of customer management and work
and asset management. It also develops systerns and applications
to give other Severn Trent companies a competitive advantage.

Property. Engineering consultancy and Insurance
Severn Trent Property develops facilities in the UK primarily for the
distribution, retail and industrial sectors.

Charles Haswell and Partners is an engineering and project
managerment consultancy working for chents in the UK and overseas.

Derwent Insurance, based in Guernsey, provides insurance cover to
Severn Trent group companies.

Financial highlights

Turnover

£899.9 mitiion

Profit before interest*

£334.1 mittion

Turnover

£494 8 mitiion

Profit before interest*

£73.0 mitiion

Turnover

£381.6 mition

Profit before interest®

£32O millign

Turnover

£62.0 mitiion

Turnover

£43.0 mitiion

*and before tax,
goodwill amortisation
and exceptlional items




Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2002 3
Performance highlights Market opportunities
The programme for reducing costs in Severn Trent Water also continued to Severn Trent Water is well placed o
Severn Trent Water has continued to deliver efficiencies against the £2 billion take advantage of pfans to introduce
make goad progress. Since the beginning investment programme for the five-year a competitive market for 1,900 large
of AMP3, gross operating cost efficiencies period 200072001 to 2004/2005, resulting industrial and commerclal water users
were £47 million, offset by cost pressures in around 7% savings against OFWAT's - - 2 market worth £200 million.
amounting to £36 million. The £47 million targets. In the year, £350 million was
of gross operating cost efficiencies is invested and significant customer benefits
£11 million ahead of OFWAT's target. were delivered.
The integration of UK Waste with Biffa was collection, fandfill and special waste The EU Landfill Directive will come into
completed ahead of schedule, achieving capabilities offers a competitive advantage in force in this financial year. More waste will
synergy savings in 2001/2002 estimated at the market place. Biffa has around 1,000 be directed from landfill requiring more
approximately £16 million; this was ahead of  trucks and more than 60 depots throughout sorting, processing and recycling. We have
the target run rate of £15 million per annum.  the UK and has 33 operational landfill sites the facilities to meet these new demands.

Biffa is the largest single supplier of integrated handiing around 7 million tonnes per annum.

waste management sarvices in the UK

its position as an integrated supplier with

Services' turnover increased by 8.9% to Management was able to mitigate the efiects Cur electronic non-maving parts water
£381.6 million. The acquisiticn of Coventry- of the difficult US market by inftiating ¢ost meter, with fuil read-out capability is on trial
based City Analytical Services strengthened reductions, job cuts and anncuncing closures in 18 US locations. The need for analytical
analytical services' leading position in the UK of some facilities. In Italy, a consortium led by services in the UK contaminated land sector
market. The water purification business is the  Severn Trent Water International was awarded is growing rapidly as more building takes
market leader in the US in disinfection z 30-year contract to operate water and place on brownfield sites.

services. wastewater services at Terni, north of Reme.

The group continued the strategic Cespite problems in the USA, the CIS-Cpen The work management business is
repositioning of the overall business. Vision system has been successfully consclidating its position as an integrated
As part of this realignment, Stoner Associates  implemented in other locations, not least global business and is introducing new
was sold generating an exceptional profif in the UK for Severn Trent Water, internet-based products.

of £8.0 millicn and the UK operations were

restructured to achieve better efficiencies

and customer service.

Severn Trent Property sold some sites Charles Haswell & Partners is an engineering We aim to use expertise developed over
formerly occupied by Severn Trent Water. design consultancy. After many years of many years to compete for business

At Thorpe Park, Leeds, where Savern Trent predominantly working for Severn Trent from external customers as well as within
Property is involved in a business park Water, more than 50% of revenues now Severn Trent.

development totalling 1.8 million square comes from external clients.

feet, further office developments have been
completed for Cable & Wireless and 1BM.




2001/2002 was another year of achieverment
for the Severn Trent group, with growing
recognition of our position as a leading
environmental services business and a
satisfactory results performance overall,

Severn Trent has a role as a corporate citizen,
with opportunities to shape the environment
and the lives of the communities where we
operate, and as an employer, with significant
responsibilities for the warking environment
we provide for ocur people.

Business performance

Qur team at Severn Trent Water has continued
ta out-perform the regulatory targets for gross
operating cost efficiencies, although there are
rmounting cest pressures {for exampie, climate
change levy) not aliowed for in the 1999
price determination. Despite another 1% real
reduction in average prices charged to water
customers from April 2001, Water's profit
befare interest and tax at £334.1 million

was 1.1% above the prior year.

In our growth businesses, extremely capable
management at Biffa, has driven synergy
benefits in 2001/2002 of £16 million from
the integration of UK Waste, commendably
ahead of target.

Qur Severn Trent Services team was held
hack by a clear weakening in the US
econemic environment in the second half
of 200172002 but they took action early
1o meet the challenges posed. Our growth
businesses increased profit before interest,
tax, goodwill amortisation and excepticnal
iterns by 25.3% to £105.0 million.

L S
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Chairman'’s statement

The group’s strategy is to increase shareholder value
by establishing Severn Trent as the UK’s leading
integrated environmental services business...

the environment is definitely our business.

Environmental leadership
In 2001/2002, a series of events emphasised
our credentials as an environmental leader,

= We were named as the leading utility in
the Dow Jones Sustainability World Index.
The index rates companies’ social and
environmental activity alongside their
economic performance,

+ We rermain the only water, waste water

and sclid waste company to have received an
AAA rating from Innovest. The US institutional
investment research firm commended our
treatment of the environment as a source

of competitive advantage.

+ Since privatisation, Severn Trent Water has
seen river quality improve by 47%, effluent
quality improve by 71% and leakage fall by
30%. We have more than doubled investmeant
and increased productivity by 40%.

= Once again, Severn Trent Water was
classified by the Drinking Water Inspectorate
as supplying water 'significantly above
average’ quality, with an overall compliance
of more than 99.9%.

+ Biffa also continued to achieve envircnmental
tandmarks. It is among Britain’s significant
producers of green energy fromn fandfill gas.
Under its waste contract on the Isle of Wight,
Biffa is now delivering landfill diversion levels
of more than 45% - well in excess of the
Government's fargets and a shop window for
what potentially can be achieved nationwide,
Biffa's landfill tax credit scheme provided
£17 million for environmental and
community projects.

leaders In |
environmental services

+ Our USA inaugural Envircnmental Leadership
Alliance award was given to the City of
Daytona Beach, Florida, for exemplary
environmentzl and economic performanca.

* Rabert Walker, Severn Trent Group Chief
Executive, was appointed Chairman of the
Innovation and Growth team for the government's
Environmental Goods and Services sector.

Group results

Group turncver was £1,794.3 miliion, up 6.7%,
benefiting from a full year's contribution from
the acquisition of UK Waste. Thig increase
was mainly fuelled by our growth businesses,
whose turnover rose 17.4% to £876.4 miilion,
Turnover from water and sewerage increased
by £12.7 million to £899.9 million.

Group profit before interest, tax, goodwill
amartisation and exceptional items rose

by 4.6% to £418.8 million. The water and
sewerage business increased by 1.1% to
£334.1 million. Qur non-regulated businesses
in total increased by 21.7% to £100.8 million.

After goodwill amortisation of £26.5 million
(£17.4 million) and interest charges of
£159.0 million (£161.1 million), group
profit before tax and exceptional items was
£233.3 million, an increase of 5.2%. Qur
non-regulated businesses provided 52.2%
(50.6%,) of group revenues and 18.2%
(16.5%) of profit before interest, tax and
exceptional items.

The Beoard has declared a final dividend of
28.56 pence per share (28.0 pence) to be
paid cn 1 October 2002. This gives a total
dividend for the year of 45.9 pence per share
(450 pence), 2 total year on year increase of 2%,




Cur management and staff

In 200172002, we welcomed two new
additions to the Beard, Alan Pereiman,
formerly Group Finance Director of Whitbread,
took over the reins of Group Finance Director
from Alan Costin. Alan Costin spent nine and
a half years at Severn Trent and we thank him
warmly for his contribution.

Marisa Cassoni, the Group Finance Director
of Consignia. joined the Beard as a non-
executive director. Her experience of both
regulation and finance will be valuable to
Severn Trent and we are pleased to have her
2s a member of cur Audit Committee and
Treasury Committee.

Andrew Simon, our senior non-executive
directar, has decided to stand down after

15 years. Andrew joined Severn Trent before
privatisation and was the senior independent
rion-executive director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee. His huge experience and
dedication will be greatly missad.

| am pleased to inform you that Martin Flower
has agreed to take over the duties of the

senior independent non-executive director, .

with Eric Anstee becoming Chairman of the
Audit Committee,

My main thanks must go to cur hard
working and dedicated staff. These people
are responsible for a vital part of modern
society's needs. As usua! they have coped
with every unexpected challenge, be it freak
weather, the foot-and-mouth outbreak or the
severe disruption to US business caused by
terrorism. | am proud that Severn Trent has
a team of people who continualiy rise to the
challenge and defiver.

2.7 -
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My main thanks must go to our hard working
and dedicated staff. | am proud that Severn Trent
has a team of people who continually rise to the
challenge and deliver.

Nct only do these unsung heroes and heroines
kezp our business running, but many of them
ara actively invalved In their communities.
For instance. our US staff raised $126,000 for
the victims of the World Trade Center disaster,
whiie Severn Trent's support for WaterAid
raised over £150.000 this year, OQur annual
ccrimunity investment programme, focused
ar environmental education, the built
environment, and the natural environment,
new totals around £3.0 million, well over

7= of our pre-tax profits.

The future

The group's strategy is to increase sharehglder
vz'ue by establishing Severn Trent as the UK's
leading integrated environmenta! services
business and by building on Services,
particularly its leadership position in the
analytical services market in the USA and UK.

We will continue to focus on being a leading
watar company while building a substantial
an¢ successful integrated waste management
business and developing our environmental
services activities. The environment is
definitely our business.

David Arculus Chairman
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Group Chief Executive’s review

Our mission is to be a leading supplier of
environmental products and services for the
benefit of shareholders, customers, employees and
the wider communities in which we live and work.

the environmen
IS our business

| am pleased to report another year of
progress throughout the group. This has
been particularly encouraging in view of
the difficuit economic conditions the
businesses faced in the UK and the US,
our principal markets.

Our mission is to be a leading supplier

of environmentat products and services
for the benefit of shareholders, customers,
employees and the wider communities

in which we live and work.

We aim to grow shareholder returns by
establishing Severn Trent as the UK's leading
supplier of environmental services - already
Biffa is the UK’s largest single supplier of
integrated waste management services.

In the US we are positioning Severn Trent
Services as one of the leading environmental
solutions providers in the large and growing
US market.

The Chairman refers to Severn Trent's
growing environmental reputation, We aim

to build on this reputation by developing a
moere integrated approach across the group
towards our business customers, providing
them with a wider range of the group's services
and helping them cope with the increasing
demands of environmental compliance.

The UK market for environmental services

is forecast to grow to £17.5 billion in 2005.
Severn Trent is weil-placed to take advantage
of these market opportunities.

Water

Water and sewerage produced ancther
strong result, with profit before interest and
tax ahead by £3.6 million at £334.1 million.

Severn Trent Water continued to make

good progress in controlling operating

costs. With gross operating cost efficiencies
of £47 million since the beginning of AMP3,
we are over two-thirds of the way towards
our criginal 2005 target for out-performance;
and Severn Trent Water is now targeting
further savings.

Severn Trent Water also continued to cut-
perform in delivering its £2 billion five-year
capital investment programme, resulting in
around 7% savings against OFWAT's targets.
A total of £350 million was spent in the year
maintaining ard improving the region’s water
resources and sewerage systems.

A recent legal case (Marcic vs Thames
Water) has the potential to require water
and sewerage companies to spend very
significant amounts to further protect their
custormers from sewer flooding. Clarification
on this issue is awaited from OFWAT,
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Severn Trent Water has long argued that
it is unacceptable for customers to suffer
from sewer flooding.

| am encouraged that we seem to be
achieving a broad consensus between
government, regulators and companies
around a number of key issues affecting
the future of the water industry. On 3 May,
Margaret Beckett, Secretary of State for the
Department of the Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs, said 'Let us make this clear
- the UK water industry is a success story’.
In particular, there appears o be broad
agreement on the need for longer-term
vision and planning for this vital industry.

Waste

in 2001/2002, Biffa's turnover grew 24.9% to
£494.8 million, and profit before interest, tax,
goodwill amortisation and exceptional items
was ahead 59.7% at £73.0 million. Al three
divisions in the UK, collection, iandfill and
special waste contributed in almost equal
mmeasure to this excellent result. I'm also
pleased to report better pregress in the
second half-year in Biffa Belgium, following
the appointment of a new Managing Director.

Following the successful integration of UK
Waste, acquired for some £367 million in
September 2000, Biffz is now the UK's largest
single supplier of integrated waste services.
All our integration targets, set at the time

of the acquisition, have been exceeded and
Biffa is now well positioned 1o take advantege
of the growth opportunity in the UK waste
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The UK market for environmental services

is forecast to grow to £17.5 billion in 2005.
Severn Trent is well-placed to take advantage
of these market opportunities

sector. This oppartunity comes from changes
in waste legislation and regulations, that
reguire more environmentally sensible means™
of disposal than landfiil.

With around 1,000 trucks on the road, Biffa is
now the lowest cost waste coilection operator in
the UK. It is also one of the UK’s leading landfill
businesses and manages 74 million cubic
metres of operational void space. Special waste
treatment is handled out of thres locations, and
Biffa now has interests in 75MW of electricity
generation in the UK from its landfill sites,
including those leased to third parties.

Services

Services grew turnover by 8.9% to £381.6
mitlien in 200172002, although profit before
interest, tax and goodwil! amertisation was
down by 16% at £32.0 million, principally
the result of a difficult economic environment
in the US - over 85% of Services’ turnover
comes from the US. A number of steps

were taken to improve efficiencies and

lower the cost-base, closing down two of

cur environmental testing laberatories and
rationalising production locations in our
purification equiprment division. These cost
initiatives, together with a shift towards lower
margin products and services during the year
also contributed to the lower trading result.

However, I'm pleased to report that analytic
services consolidated its position as the

teading supplier of environmental testing
services in both the US and the UK and
our gperating services division continue

Breakdown of the UK environmental services market
by size %

Type of service

to make progress in winning naw contracts
and improving margins. The purification
division aiso broadened its range of products
and services through some innovative new
partnerships and has faunched a wide range
of new products during the year.

Our people

| would like to add my persenal thanks to
those of the Chalrman, for the hard work
and dedication shown by all our staff during
the past year. Econgmic situations in both
the UK and US have not been easy, and I'm
grateful for the energy and enterprise shown
by all our employees.

Outlook

Overall, the group is likely to experience a
challenging year in 2002/2003. While we
remain confident in Severn Trent Water's
ability to outperform its regulatory targets for
gross operating cost efficiencies, 2002/2003
will see continuing offsetting cost pressures
and broadly unchanged prices. Biffa and
Services, with their lowered costs bases,
have leading positions in their key markets
and their progress will depend on the speed
and timing of economic recovery in the UK

Rohbert Walker Group Chief Executive

—

Severn Trent’s capability

1 Waste and recycling 56% Biffa

2 Industrial water treatment 7%  Capital Controls UK

3 Energy services 5% -

4 Legal and other 5% -

5 Consultancy 13%  Haswell

6 Testing 5%  Severn Trent Laboratories
7 Competable water services 9% Sewern Trent Water




Environmental leadership

1 Services has a leading

position in the analytica

services market in the

US and the UK with more
than 30 laberatories.

2 Biffa is the leading
single supplier of
integrated waste
management services

in the UK It operates
around 1,000 trucks, has
33 operational landfill
sites and handles around
seven million tonnes of
waste each year.

3 Strong IT systems are
at the heart of Biffa's
success. One initiative

is the development of

an in-cab communication
system improving
productivity, efficiency
and custorner services.

In 2001/2002 the system
was successfully piloted
in Birmingham.

>

4 Severn Trent Water
clinched the first of up

to 35 supply deals with
Northern Foods - outside
its usual operational area.
The deal will save 10%
on the annual water and
trade effluent bill at the
Morthern Foods Bowyers
site in Trowbridge,
Wiltshire.

5 Naturally occurring
arsanic entering water
supplies affects countries
around the world. Severn
Trent Water, Severn Trent
Services and Bayer AG
have successfully completed
triais of a new system for
removying arsenic.

6 Severn Trent Water

is working with Coaors
Brewers Limited towards
an Integrated Pollution
Prevention and Control
permit. The partnership
has already increased
environmental compliance
and reduced the
environmental impact
of Coors’ operations.
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Every business needs ideals above those of simply
making money. And no business can operate in
isolation from society. Our role centres on the
delivery of environmental services. A vibrant

and healthy environment is fundamental to the
well-being of society.

Research and development

To consolidate our leading position in the
environmental services market we invested
£5.2 miliion in research and develcpment
during 2001/2002. Projects included an
investigation into landfill operation and
management issues with leading universities.
We alsc continued 1o develop improvements
in analytical techniques.
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Meeting customer needs

Severn Trent is a leader in the envirgnmental
services market, An example of this is Severn
Trent Water’'s Water Guardian certification
scheme, which sets new standards in the
quality and safety of water and is supported
by Marks and Spencer. The scherne was
designed for the food industry but is now
being used by some local authorities.

Savern Trent Pl Annual Report and Accounts 2002

Providing integrated services

To reduce costs and simplify waste disposai and
recycling, large companies are increasingly
seeking a single naticnal partner to deal

with all their waste management issues.

Biffa is benefiting from this trend because

of its improved national reach, following

the acquisition of UK Waste, and its ability

to deal with many differant waste streams,

Building long-term relationships

Severn Trent Water is growing its range of
non-regulated products for domestic and
smail business customers. In 200172002,
it added fixed charge internet access to its
portfolic. It has also launched Severn Trent
Utility Services to take its expertise in asset
management, customer service and change
management to new customers outside the
water industry.
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Providing integrated solutions

Qur customers can concentrate on their business
goals while we enable them to comply with
environmental regulation. By providing them with
an integrated service we help them reduce risk,
contral costs and enhance their reputation.

Providing specialist expertise

As a major company, our responsibilities
extend beyond our shareholders. We aim to
manage our business in the ethical manner
outlined in our Code of Business Principles
and Conduct. In this way, we can sustain
business success while meeting the aspirations
of custamers, partners, employees and the
communities we serve. The code ¢an be seen
at www.severntrent.com.

Businesses and the environment

Severn Trent is well placed to take advantage
of the rapid growth in the environmental
services market. Globally, this sector is
expected to grow from $515 billion to

$688 billion by 2010. This market growth

is being driven by a flood of new tegislation,
such as the EUJ Landfill Directive which
comes into force this year,

Stakeholder demands and legislation
Severn Trent has developed from its roots
as a regional water company to become

an integrated environmental services
business. We offer a one-stop-shop for
environmental services, helping customers
to comply with environmental legislation.
We are able to manage water and effluent,
deal with waste and provide a host of other
services, such as laboratory analysis.
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Our leading position

Severn Trent was named as the teading utility
in the Dow Jones Sustainability World Index.
ft remains the only water, wastewater and
sclid waste company to have received an
AAA rating from US investrment research

firm Innovest. Severn Trent Water was rated
the UK's maost admired water company in

a survey by Management Today.

1 In 2001/2002, Allted
Distillers won a prestigious
Green Apple award for
environmental best
practice, Judges cited
Biffa's rele in helping
Allied win the government-
sponsored award. Biffa
operates tha machinsry

at the waste compound

at Allied’s Kilmalid
bottling plant.

2 The acquisition of UK
Waste brought an interest
in the UK's largest waste
management operation, in
Greater Manchester. Working
with the local authority,
we now dispose annually
of 1.2 million tonnes of
waste in our landfill sites,
through this contract.

3 'n August 2001, we
began work on the seven-
vear Stratford refuse and
recycling contract, which
we retained in open
tender. This will enable
Stratford District Coungil
to meet govemment
recycling targets.

4 Severn Trent Water
signad a major contract
to treat trade effluent and
reduce the envircnmental
impact of Dairy Crest’s
expanded Severnside
dairy. When completed

in tha autumn of 2002,
Severnside will be capable
of processing more than
500 million litres of milk
each year.

5 To assist with
environmental compliance,
customers will be ahle

to buy ail Severn Trant
services in one package.
Through a single account
manager, our integrated
environmental services
offering will help to ensure
they comply with all
enviranmental regulations.

6 To improve customer
service and efficiency
Seyern Trent Water's
custamer relations
department, which

was praviously spread
acress 22 sites, has been
consolidated inte just four.
These include two state-
oi-the-art contact centres
in Derby and Coventry.

7 Biffa is helping Coors
Brewers Limited to meet
its recycling targets. Biffa
manages the coilection,
reatrment, disposal and
recytling of waste at the
brewer's Burton-on-Trent
site, leaving Coors to
concentrate on its
husiness goals.




Water
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Review of operations

We continued to focus on out-performing the
regulatory contract, preparing for competition
and looking for opportunities to grow the business.

2001/2002 performance

In 200172002, turnover from water and
sewerage increased by 1.4% to £899.9
million (£887.2 million). Profit before interest
and tax rose by 1.1% to £334.1 miliion (£330.5
million).

The 1.4% increase in turnover was less

than the 2.2% allowed under the regulatory
formula (RPI-K). This refiected, amongst
other things, a modest reduction in industrial
demands for our services. Direct operating
costs of the regulated water business were
£357.4 million, a reduction in real terms of
£2.7 million or 0.7%. Excluding the impact
of inflation, gross operating cost efficiencias
in 2001/2002 amounted to £21.0 million, a
reduction of 5.9% compared to the previous
year. However, these efficiencies were offset
by cost pressures of £18.3 million.

The programme for reducing costs in

Severn Trent Water has continued to

make good progress. Since the beginning

of AMP3, gross operating cost efficiencies
were £47 million, offset by cost pressures
amounting to £36 million. The £47 million of
gross operating cost efficiencies is £11 million
ahead of the OFWAT target.

We continued to focus on out-performing
the regulatory contract, preparing for
competition and locking for opportunities
to grow the business.

Severn Trent Water was rated the UK's
most admired water company in a survey
by Management Today.

Beating the regulatory contract

We are ahead of the challenging gross
operating cost efficiency targets set by
OFWAT during the 1999 price review

and we are delivering capital expenditure
efficiencies of around 7%. The majcr
restructuring programme started before
that review is now virtually complete; but
we continue to look for further cpportunities
te improve the efficiency of our operations.

By aggressively driving down costs, we have
achieved gross operating cost efficiencies of
£47 million since the beginning of the AMP3
period. This has been achieved through a
series of meaasures including a headeount
reduction of some 1,200, the consclidation
of our activities onto a fewer number

of sites and we have streamlinad many

of our support activities, including cur
maintenance and supply chain operations.

These reductions have enabled us to
remain on course to meet or excead the
targeted gross operating cost efficiencies
of £75 million per annum in 2004/2005.

We also continued to deliver efficiencies
against the £2 billion investment programme
for the five-year period 2000/2001 to
2004/2005, resulting in around 7% savings
against OFWAT's targets. In the year we invested
£350 million and delivered significant
custorner benefits, This total was slightly less
than the amount that we originally budgeted
for the year because some schemes were
defayed when the foot-and-mouth crisis
denied our engineers and contractors access
to farmland. Despite the slippage in capital
expenditure, we are confident that regulatory
physical outputs and scheme completions will
be achieved in the current regulatory period.

The initiat phase of a £70 million investment
has been delivered at Derby sewage treatment
works. The cverall scheme will significantly
improve the quality of effluent and reduce
odour. In the year. we also began to lay a
major water supply link main between
Birmingham and Coventry. This scheme,
costing some £20 million, will significantly
increase the security of water supplies to
these two major cities for years to come.

Mary other cormmunities throughout the East
and West Midlands also benefited from schemes
which improved their drinking water, the
pressure of water supplies, the reliability of the
local sewage systemns and the quality of effluent
discharged from sewage treatrment works.
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Preparing for competition in the water industry
For some years we have been challenging
government and QFWAT to clarify the
position of competition in the water industry;
Environment Minister Michael Meacher's
staterment in March was welcome as his new
proposal introduces a competitive market for
1,900 large industrial and commercia! water
users across the UK. Once the proposed new
legislation is in place, this new market will be
worth around £200 million.

Under the proposal, these customers which
include textile manufacturers, food producers
and engineering companies, will be able to
take advantage of increased competition in
the water supply service.

We are well placed {0 seize a substantial
slice of this new business as a result of our
10 years of account management experience
and our contacts with national account
customers such as Northern Foods.

In March, we were awarded the first of 35
supply deals with Northern Foods. This is for
the supply of water and sewerage services to
its Bowyers factory in Wiltshire, The contract
is likety to save Bowyers 109 on its annual
water and trade effluent bill.

In addition to the inncvative work we have
undertaken with our national accounts, we have
develeped a range of new products that enable
us to find new customers for our expertise.

Our Water Guardian certification scheme,
which promctas the highest standards of
water quality and water safety, is now being
used by a number of lceal authorities which
want to be certain that water and wastewater
is managed in a sustainable way. The schema
is endorsed by Marks and Spencer,

Other new products include Biliing Manager,
which consolidates bills for customers with
muftiple sites, and Data Monitor, which zliows
custormers to monitor water and energy
consumption, control costs and optimise use.




Through our On-site Advisor consultancy
service we are helping customers to meet
environmental standards and drive down the
cost of water supply, wastewater and trade
effluent disposal.

We also hold the leading position in the UK
for managing leakage; and throvgh our Leak
Locator service we are working with a number
of companijes to identify leaks on their own
networks to reduce consumption and water
bills. These customers are located both inside
and outside the Severn Trent regicn.

Growing the business

During the year we consolidated the position
of Severn Trent Ratail Services, which is
developing a series of non-regulated products
for domestic and smail business customers,

Retail Services added fixed charge internet
access to its preduct portfoiio. which also
includes energy supplies, telecomms
products, insurance and the provision of
data about Severn Trent Water's services
to conveyancing salicitors,

In 20Q1/2002, we launched Severn Trent
Utility Services to exploit our experience

and expertise in managing assets, improving
customer service and change management
processes. This new business aims to take
advantage of opportunities in other parts

of the water industry. In addition we are also
targeting other markets in areas such as
transport and the public sector.

We are already providing asset management

advice to organisations such as Scottish Water,

Londen Underground and Network Rail.

Service and quality

Customers are at the heart of everything
that we do in Severn Trent Water and there
have been many areas of improvernent
during the year.
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Our customer relations department, which
was previously spread across 22 sites, has
been consolidated onto just four during the
year. These include two contact and billing
centres in Derby and Coventry. In Derby,
we transformed an old computer building,
Columbus House, into a state-of-the-art
contact and billing centre with some 200
staff. On the same site, a new engineering
centre was cpened by Environment Secretary
Margaret Beckett in March 2002,

Qur determination to maintain customer
service whatever the circumstances was
recognised through a Utility Industry
Achievement award for the development

of a rapid response unit to ensure supplies
are maintained during network emargencies.

Despite the real reduction in water bills we
managed to maintain some of the highest
leveis of drinking water quality and protection
for our rivers.

Environment and community

We introduced a successful, subsidised
personal computer scheme for employees,
H:Ome, and more than 2,500 employees
took up the offer. For every 100 cormputers
taken up by employees, the suppliers offered
one computer to local charities.

Another core part of our community
responsibility was the production of a
guidance kit to help beat bogus callers.

This is a serious problem for our customers,
particuiarly the elderly and vulnerable.

We have been leading the water industry’s
invelvernent in this Home Office project to
tackle this despicable crime.

Many of our employees carry cut voluntary
work in the community. Through our internal
environment awards, employees can bid for
maney to use in community projects, At
Ravenhurst School in Leicester, for example,
we funded a new outdoor classroom,
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We have continued to develop bicdiversity
action plans for all of our sites, These
involve maintaining the populations of
some species and reintroducing others

to their natural habitats.

Outlook

Severn Trent Water and the water industry
as a whole are delivering the high quality
service and vafue for money that the public
expect. The average household bills in the
UK are now £30 lower in real terms than

in 1999/2000,

To maintain znd improve our services we
must be free to invest in the water infrastructure.
The current regulatory framewcrk has created
uncertainty in investment communities, could
make borrowing more difficult and result in

a discount in our share price, as compared to
the underlying value of the business. We are
already working closely with the regulatory
bodies to prepare for the next pricing raview
and recent comments from OFWAT have
been encouraging,

Climate change remains a long-term

issue for Severn Trent and the most recent
projections from the UK Climate Change
Impacts Programme once again suggest a
significant impact on the Severn Trent region.
We must prepare for the expected change

in rainfall patterns to protect and enhzance
our water resources. We may, for example,
need to build larger reservoirs ta hold

water through longer, drier summers, Our
sewerage systems will also need considerable
investment if they are required to cope with
heavier rainfall.




Waste
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Review of operations

We believe that our position as an integrated supplief
with collection, landfill and special waste capabilities
offers a competitive advantage in the market place.

2001/2002 performance

In 2001/2002, Biffa's turnover rose by 24.9%
tc £494.8 million (£396.0 million), benefiting
from a full year's contribution from UK Waste,
which was acquired in September 2000. After
goodwill amortisation of £16.8 million, Biffa's
profit before interest, tax and exceptional
costs (in the prior year) was £56.2 million
(£37.0 million). Profit before interest, tax,
goodwill amortisation and exceptional costs
increased 59.7% to £73.0 million. The enlarged
Biffa in the UK, exctuding the benefits of
synergies from the UK Waste acquisition,

is estimated to have delivered growth in profit
before interest, tax, goodwill amortisation

and exceptional costs of around 11%.

Turnover in the UK increased by 27.1%
to £449.5 miltion, while Belgian turnover
increased by 7.1% tc £45.3 million.

The integration of UK Waste with Biffa

was completed ahead of schedule, achieving
synergy savings in 2001/2002 estimated

at approximately £16 million; this was ahead
of the target rate of £15 million per annum.
These synergies contributed significantly
to'the increase in profit margin on sales

for Biffa in the UK (before interest, tax,
goodwill amortisation and excepticnal

costs) to 16.0% (11.8%).

UK Waste integration

The synergy savings were achieved through
a series of measures, including reducing
400 positions, ciosing 14 depots, removing
150 trucks from service and moving alt UK
Waste head office functions to Biffa.

The integraticn has created a step change
in the size and profile of our waste business,
leaving us well placed to take advantage of
naw envircnmental legisiation, such as the
EU Landfill Directive.

We are the largest supplier of integrated
wasie management services in the UK,

with one of the largest sales forces in the
industry. We believe that our position as an
integrated supplier with collection, landfill and
special waste capatbilities offers a competitive
advantage in the market place. We have around
1,000 trucks and more than 60 depots

throughout the UK and have 33 operational
landfill sites handling around seven million
tonnes per annum.

To manage this newly enlarged business

we depend on strong IT systermns. These have
played a key role in the integration process
and are helping us to improve efficiency and
increase margins.

Cur experienced in-house IT tearn has an
expert knowledge of gur business and keep
development costs low. They successfully
migrated the UK Waste customer database
to the Biffa system. In ancther step forwarg,
our major customers can now see their
accounts online.

Collection

In 2001/2002, coliection turnover in the UK
increased to £260.8 million (£212.7 million)
as integration with UK Waste completed
our national network. Coliection volumes
rose by about a quarter and sales margins
(before interest, tax, goodwill amortisation
and exceptional costs) increased from
13.2% to 17.4%. The collection division
contributed a profit before interest, tax,
goedwill amortisation and exceptional

costs of £45.3 millicn (£28.1 million),

We began preparing the business to seize
the opportunities offered by the EU Landfill
Directive, which will come into force this
year. The directive will mean more waste
diverted from landfill requiring more sorting,
processing and recycling.

We began upgrading our depots, building
sortation halls and transfer stations tc receive
some of this waste. Depots in Nottingham,
Gateshead and Manchester are among those
being upgraded.

We focused on improving efficiency. A new
system giving us direct, online communication
to each of our trucks was successfully piloted
in Birmingham. It enables us to monitor the
prograss of each truck and alerts us if they
are experiencing any problems as well as
automatically updating the central database
when the service is done. We intend to roli
this out nationwide.
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Once again, we had a good year in the smaller
municipal coilection market. in August, we
began work on the seven-year Stratford refuse
and recycling contract, which we retained in
epen tender. This will enable Stratford District
Council tc meet government recycling targets.

We continued to operate collection
contracts for local authorities around the
UK. In Staffordshire, for example, we operate
collection contracts and transfer stations for
the county council and some Staffordshire
district authorities. We disposed of 380,000
tonnes of waste through a combination of
landfiil and composting.

Our alliance with SCA Recycling UK continues
tc perferm well and we are linking computer
systems to protect us frem the vagaries of
commadity prices. Through this alliance we
are protected from the fluctuations of the
market as our prices are agreed in advance.

Once again we expanded our Biffpack packaging
compliance scheme which now has more than
400 members.

Landfill

Landfill turnover in the UK increased by
30.2% to £147.4 millien. Landfill velumes
rose by 209, including the contribution from
UK Waste, and average unit revenues were up
24%. We were the first waste management
company to act on the foct-and-mouth

crisis under the guidance of the Ministry

of Agriculture, Food and Fisheries and the
Environment Agency. Foot-and-mouth activity
produced a profit contribution in 200172002
of approximately £5 million. We remained
sensitive to local community concerns about
this issue; no infected carcasses or ash

from the pyres were taken to Biffa landfilt
sites. Profit from the landfill division,

before interest, tax, goodwill amortisation
and exceptional costs was up 69.7% at
£34.1 million (£20.1 miblion).

The acquisition of UK Waste brought with

it an interest in the UK’s largest single waste
management operation in Greater Manchester.
Waorking with the local authority we disposed of
1.2 million tonnes of waste that were delivered
to our landfill sites through this contract.




Landfill provides steady revenues and it is

a necessary but mature sector where growth
is limited. However, the growing demand for
renewable energy has created considerable
opportunities for our landfill gas operations.

Special Waste

The special waste division, which includes the
important power generation activity, achieved
a 48.6% increase in turnover to £41.3 million
and contributed profit before interest, tax,
goodwill amortisaticn and exceptional costs
of £6.1 million (£3.6 million).

We again increased the number of integrated
waste contracts, handling multiple waste
streams. Through these contracts, customers
rely an Biffa to ensure they comply with all
waste regulations.

fn 2001, Dumbarton-based spirits company
Allied Distillers was awarded a *Green Apple’
award for environmental best practice, Biffa
employees operate the machinery in the
waste compound at Allied’s Kilmalid distillery
and judges cited Biffa’s role in helping Allied
win the award, for which it beat more than
300 cther UK companies and organisations.

Following this recognition, we won a contract
to install a similar compound at Terex
Equipment near Motherwell.

At the Coors Brewers Limited (formerly Bass
Brewers) Burton-on-Trent site we continued
to work with Severn Trent Water to provide
an integrated water and waste management
contract. We are actively seeking further
opportunities to leverage the skills of other
parts of the group,

During the new financial year, the
implementation of new legislation will

ban hazardous liquids from landfill sites.
Biffa voluntarily banned them from theirs in
199C. For many organisations this will mean
finding new methods of disposal. Our waste
treatment plants process industrial sludge
and acids to a high standard, allowing them
to be released to sewage treatment plants.
They are, therefore, well placed to benefit
from this change in the regulations,
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We currently have interests in 7SMW of
etectricity generation in the UK (including
from Biffa sites leased to third parties).
Although permit delays frustrated our
ambition to achieve 90MW in 200172002,
electricity generation is planned fo increase
to over 100MW within four years.

Belgium

In Belgium, turncver increased by 7.1% to
£45.3 million with landfill velumes stabilising
throughout the year.

In 200172002, Biffa Beigium was adversely
impacted by rising disposal costs in Flanders
and by changes in environmental taxation.
However, we took strong action to mitigate

the effect of these issues. A new managing
director was appointed and began to drive down
costs, There were signs of improvement in the
second half of 2001/2002. Second half profit
was three times that achieved in the first half,

In Europe, waste fegislation and recycling
techniques are ahead of the UK, We believe
that our experience in Belgium leaves us
well placed for future developrments in the
UK market.

Environment and community
We continued to develop our environment
and community programme.

Cur fandfill tax credit scheme, Biffaward,
provided £17 million for environmental and
community projects. The scheme, which is
managed by the Royal Society for Nature
Conservation, allows us to channel 20%

of the landfill tax collected into funding
environmental projects.

Amcng the projects to benefit this year

was the National Waste Awareness [nitiative,
which will be educating shoppers in city
centres and out-of-town shopping complexes
to ‘Rethink Rubbish’ during summer 2002.
The Environment Minister, Michae! Meacher,
again presented the awards for the annual
Bitfaward Award Ceremony for best projects
by class with Imperial College and Best Foot
Forward being awarded overall winner for
their joint study into resource use on the
Isle of Wight.
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Wz atready produce a biannual environment
report and, because we manage large

tracts of land, we have produced our first
biodiversity repert. This will provide information
on the actions we take toc maintain the
population of species on these sites.

Outlook

The EU Landfilt Directive will come into force
during this financial year and our scale and
the breadth of our capabilities position us well
to help our customers meet these challenges.

However, the timing of implementation of

the directive and its enforcement is critical.
There must be clear guidance on how the new
regulations will be implemented and enfarced.
We already have the trucks and treatment
facilities to meet the new requirerments but

to invest further we must know when to
expect returns,

Our integrated collection, recycling and
disposal contract on the Isle of Wight
continued to be a model for other areas.
Island Waste Services remains well ahead
of government targets for diverting waste
from landfill. There are opportunities for
similar solutions in other parts of the UK.

Biffa is aiready responding to an increasing
number of tenders for integrated municipal
waste services as local authorities seek o
comply with the EU Landfil! Directive.

There is a long line of directives and
regulations coming out of Brussels and
being adopted in the UK and these are
beginning to drive the sustainable waste
management debate and mould UK
envirorymental protection. Qur scale
and the quality of our people make us
ideally placed to take advantage of the
opportunities this offers,
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Review of operations

Management was able to mitigate the effects of
the difficult US market by initiating cost reductions,
job cuts and announcing closures of some facilities.

2001/2002 performance

It was a challenging year for Services.
Turnover increased by 8.9% to £381.6 miltion
but profit befare interest, tax and goodwill
amortisation fell by 16.0% to £32.0 million.

Services’ profit in 2001/2002 was adversely
affected by the unfavourable economic
envircnment in the US, changes in product
mix and margins and some cone-off costs,
mainly as a result of management and
restructuring initiatives,

Around 85% of Services' turnover arose in
the US. As we anticipated in aur half-year
results announcement, there was a clear
weakening in the US economic environment
in the second half of 2001/2002. Federal
government spending priorities moved away
from environmental protaction to security.

Management was able {o mitigate the effects
of the difficult US market by initiating cost
reductions, job cuts and announcing closures
of some facilities.

Analytical services

Analytical services grew turnover by 10.6% to
£171.6 million with the US growing 9.7% 1o
£149.4 million, consolidating its position as
the leading supplier of environmental testing
services in the US.

The change in US administration delayed
agreement of federal funding from the start
of the year. This, together with the impact of a
weakening US economi¢ environment and the
lower priarity being given to environmental
protection, reduced the amount of analytical
services' higher margin testing work which
has had to be replaced by more routine, lower
margin work. Throughout most of 2001/2002.
the average amount of work delayed or
cancelled at the higher margin end has been
around $18 million.

We consolidated our leading position in the
UK environmental services' testing market,
growing turnover by 16.2%. The acquisition
of Coventry-based City Analytical Services,

a leading soils testing laboratory provided

us with a major presence in the contaminated
land sector.

Operating services

Cur operating services business continued to
show progress, although turnover declined
by 1.5% to £114.7 million,

During the past year, we renewed 77% of
contracts on a dollar basis and won over
three out of every four contracts we bid for.
Impertantly, gross margins in both cases
were improved.

The SmartMeter™, the electronic non-moving
parts water meter with full readout capability,
is now on trial in 18 focations in the US and
is demonstrating real potential,

The environmental contract services business
has grown organically and secured several new
customers. Contract wins included a five-year
agreement to run the waste treatment plant
in East Hampton, New York, and with the
Lewes, Delaware, Board of Public Works 1o
operate the City’'s wastewater treatment plant
for three years. We now operate around 600
water and wastewater facilities across the US.

Severn Trent Water internationa! (STWI) made
steady progress in Italy, Belgium and Portugal
and in its management services business
arcund the world. Management services
worked on projects in countries including
Russia, Tanzania, Ukraine, Azerbaijan and South
Africa. We also becams the preferred bidder
for a project to support the develepment of the
water and sewage sector in 14 Russian cities.

in ltaly, a consortium led by STWI was
awarded a 30-year contract to operate water
and wastewater services at Terni, north of
Rome. The ltalian market for privatised water
and wastewater looks to be one of the more
attractive in Europe in the coming years.

Water purification solutions

Water purification sclutions had a good year
as turnover increased by 21.1% to £395.3 mittion,
reflecting the high backlog of equipment
orders that remained fairly resilient
throughout the year; however, profit was
impacted by the downturn in the economy.
plant raticnalisation and by some significant
changes in product mix, with higher margin
buik chlorine business declining, offset by

1€

orders for lower margin hypochlorite and
on-site chlorine generation equipment.

Significantly, we made real progress in filling
out gaps in our equipment product range and
made use of joint ventures and partnerships
rather than acquisitions by:

+ A joint venture with Hanovia for a full range
of UV Purification equipment that Severn Trent
Services wili sell exclusively in the US market.

« A worldwide partnering agreement with
Black & Veitch and a number of business
opportunities across our product range
through this agreement.

» A 70:30 Severn Trent:DeNora joint venture
to sell advanced hypochlorite systems on
a worldwide basis.

With two national sales forces in the US
covering disinfection and water filtration
equipment, we now have the sales coverage
it place to take advantage of new technologies
developed by Severn Trent Water in the

UK, for example arsenic removal from
groundwater. Recent federal legislation,
impaosing a maximum limit of 10 parts per
billion, from 2005 onwards, cpens up an
attractive market for our filtration equipment.

Sales of our Eclox system increased.

The system was designed to help military
personnel test drinking water quickly for
contaminaticn. Heightened security concerns
led to orders from several water companies,
with the systern being used during the Winter
Olympics in Utah,
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Property, Engineering consultancy and Insurance

Our strategy is to continue to use expertise developed
aver many years to compete for business from
external customers as well as within Severn Trent.

Systems

2001/2002 performance

Total turnover for the systems business
reduced to £62.0 miltion (£70.0 million)
largely refiecting the disposal of Stoner
Associates in May 2001. The systems
business generated a {oss before interest,
tax, goodwill amortisation and exceptional
iterms of £5.7 millien (loss of £5.4 million),
However, we continued the strategic
repositioning of the overal! business.

As part of this realignment, Stoner Associates
was sold, generating an exceptional profit
of £8.0 million and the UK operations were
restructured to achieve better efficiencies
and custamer service.

As previously indicated at the announcement
of the group’s half-year results, Severn Trent
Systemns has continued to experience problems
with some C'S-Open Vision contracts in the
USA, with implementation taking longer than
anticipated and involving extra resources
and much higher costs. £25.0 million has
been recognised as an exceptional charge
(compared to £21.5 million at the half-year)
to cover the anticipated total costs of
completing these loss-making contracts.

The net cost of exceptional items in the
year's results, ncluding the profit from the
sale of Stoner Associates, was £17.0 million.

The CIS-Open Vision systern did wel! in
other regions. Several utilities in Australia
used the system in electricity and gas
markets. In the UK, Severn Trent Water
became the first utility to instali CiS-Open
Vision, providing key commercial and
industrial customers with 2 better service.

The work management business made
continued progress towards consolidating

its position as an integrated global business
under the Worksuite brand. It aiso introduced
its new internet-based products.

The business enjoyed strong market growth
in North America where there were several
new customers for our Worksuite products,
Qverall, 25% of the 20 largest electric and
gas utilities in North America use Worksuite
products. In the UK, ntl, the largest cable

communications provider began the roil-out

of the Worksuite preducts inte production
operations and Transco completed a major ™
upgrade of the Worksuite systems.

in the 1T services business, we continued

to develop and implement systems to

drive growth in cther group companies.

For example, a new system was developed
and deployed for Severn Trent Water to
create clear and easily accessible electronic
maps of all its underground infrastructure.
We installed over 120 work stations at mora
than 30 locations as part of the project.

In another project, using our Worksuite
products, we created an integrated system
using wireless computing technology that
ernabled more maintenance staff to work
directly from home and carry out their jobs
more efficiently.

Property, Engineering consultancy
and insurance

2001/2002 performance

Total turnover from the three businesses

in the year was £43.0 million (£92.6 milfion)
generating profit before interest and tax of
£1.5 million (£4.4 miilion).

Property

In 2001/2002, we disposed of some sites
formerly occupied by Severn Trent Water.
These included former offices known as Aqua
House in Birmingham and the former water
supply depot in Bromwich Road, Worcester.

I & joint venture, the site of the Avon Water
Treatment Works is being developed with
Bellway Homes.

At Thorpe Park, Leeds, where we are involved
in an office development totalling 1.8 million

square feet, further office developments have
been compieted for Cable & Wireless and IBM.

Land adjacent to Hinckley Water Reclamation
Waorks now has the benefit of glanning
permission for indusirial/distribution use.
Infrastructure works are due to commence
later this year.
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Daventry international Rail Freight Terminal
remains the largest scheme to be undertaken
by the company.

Engineering consuftancy

Charles Haswell and Partners is an engineering
design consultancy. Turnover has increased
by 33%. After many years of predominantly
working for Severn Trent Water, more

than 30% of revenues now comes from
external clients.

Ongoing commissions in the water

sector include Framework Agreements
and individual projects for United Utilities,
Yorkshire Water, West of Scotland Water
and Wessex Water. Working in conjunction
with Severn Trent Water International, the
company is also pursuing water sector
market opportunities in Southern Ireland.

Outside the water secter, ongoing major
projects include London Underground, Dublin
Port Tunnel and Channe! Tunne! Rail Link.
Significant growth has also been achieved

in the gas sector,

Insurance

Derwent Insurance, based in Guernsey,
provides insurance cover to Severn Trant
group companies.




Results

Group turnover of £1.79 billion (£1.68 billion)
was 6.7% up on the previous year. Group profit
before interest, tax, goodwill amortisation

and exceptional items was £418.8 million
(£400.2 million). After goodwill amaortisation
of £26.5 million (£17.4 million) and

net exceptional costs of £17.0 million

{£15.5 million), group profit before interest
and tax was £375.2 million (£367.3 millicn).

Exceptional items in the year of £17.0 million
all arose in Severn Trent Systems ('Systerns’)
and comprised the net cost of:

= An £8.0 million profit on disposat of Stoner
Associates, which was sold in May 2001 for
$26.0 million; and

+ A £25.0 million charge in respect of costs
gither incurred in the financial year just
ended or anticipated to arise in completing
certain foss making C1S-Open Vision contracts
in the USA.

The £25.0 million charge (compared to the
£21.5 million charge reported at the half-
year) remains an estimate, as there continues
to be ongoing work, which will take further
time to be completed. In additicn, there is
always the risk of a dispute with Systems’
customers aver the extent of its obligaticns
and/or amounts due to Systems. Cne of
Systems’ customers, the City of Portland, has
made specific reference 1o the possibility of
litigation and has formally stated its intention
to make a claim (as yet unquantified} against
Systems. It is Systems’ intention to defend
this claim robustly and to continue to pursue
with rigour its entitlements under this contract.
(See note 22e to the financial statements),

No actual proceedings have been commenced
in respect of any of the CiS-Open Vision
contracts, No provision has been made in
these financial staterments (nor can it be
under current Financial Reporting Standards)
for a potential adverse outcome of any claim
(including the City of Portland claim), dispute
or litigation in connection with any of the
CIS-Open Vision contracts in the USA.
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Financial review

Group profit before tax and exceptional items
increased in the year by 5.2% to £233.3 million.

Net interest payable by the group was
£159.0 million (£161.1 million). The

£2.1 million decrease in net interest cost
reflected the benefit of iower interest rates
offset by the full year impact of financing
costs associated with the acquisition of

UK Waste in September 2000. Net interest
charges were covered 2.4 times (2.3 times)
by profit before interest, 2.5 times (2.4 times)
before exceptional items.

Group profit before tax was £216.3 million
(£206.2 million), £233.3 million (£221.7
million) before exceptional items.

The group current tax charge for the year
ended 31 March 2002 was £16.1 million
{£12.4 million), an effective tax rate of 7.4%
(6.0%). 6.9% (5.6%) before exceptional itemns.
The current tax rate has benefited from the
utilisation of taxation allowances disclaimed
in earlier years. Due to the changing shape znd
maturity of the group, the current tax charge
as a percentage of profit after interest but
before exceptional items is expected to increase.

In compliance with FRS 19, the group has
for the first time provided for deferred tax,
giving rise to a charge of £42.3 million
{£52.4 million) and a provisicn in the
balance sheet amcunting to £366.3 million.
The results for the prior year have been
restated to reflect the application of FRS 19.
The group has chosen to apply discounting
in computing figures for FRS 19 purposes,
The deferred tax charge in future years is
more difficult to predict as, in particular,
itis impacted by changes In interest rates
frorm one balance sheet date to the next. The
application of FRS 19 and the consequential
charge for deferred tax have no impact on
cash paid or cash fiows.

Profit after tax and minority interests was
£157.3 million (£141.0 million), £216.6 million
(£208.9 million) before exceptional items and
deferred tax.

Basic earnings per share were 45.9p 41.2p).
Before exceptional items and deferred tax,
earnings per share were 63.2p (61.0p).

The proposed dividends for the full year,
amounting to 45.90p per share, are coverad
T4 times by profit after taxation and minarity
interests (before exceptional items and
deferred taxation).

Consolidated net debt at 31 March 2002 of
£2,412 million remained virtually unchanged,
showing an increase of only £1 million over
the previous year-end. Operating activities
generated a net cash inflow of £667 million,
which was sufficient to cover £352 million
capital expenditure and financial investment,
£154 million equity dividends together with
net financing costs of £145 million and tax
of £7 million. Net debt at 31 March 2002
represented 105.1% of shareholders’ funds
(105.29%) after reflecting the impact of
deferred tax,

The group has also adopted FRS 17
‘Retiremant Benefits’ for the first time this
year, taking advantage of the transiticnal
provisions requiring enhanced disclosure

of its defined benefit arrangements. Full
adoption is not required in respect of the
Severn Trent group until the yaar ended

31 March 2004. Valuations of al! of the
group’s defined benefit pension schemes for
FRS 17 purposes at 31 March 2002 showed
an aggregate net surplus of £30.5 million
(before £12.4 million of surplus deemed
irrecaverable and before deferred tax).

During the year, the group completed the
formal triennial valuation fas at 31 March
2001) of the Severn Trent Water Pension
Scheme {STWPS") the group’s main pension
scheme; the scheme assets were £794
rillion with funding at 107%, As a result
of this valuation, the SSAP24 charge for
the STWPS is reduced from 11.7% of
pensionable salaries to 10.9%, As the
impact of this change is not material, the
reduced charge has effectively been made
from 1 Apri! 2002.

Further, more detailed information on
pensions is provided in note 23 to the
financial statements.




Treasury management

The group’s treasury affairs are managed
centrally and in accordance with its Treasury
Procedures Manual and Policy Statement,
The treasury operation's primary role is to
manage liquidity, funding, investment andg
the group's financial risk, including risk from
volatility in interest and (to a lesser extent)
currency rates and counterparty credit risk,
Its activities are subject to a set of controls
commensurate with the magnitude of the
borrowings and investments under its
management. A Treasury Committee
(appointed by the Board) determines
matters of Treasury policy and its approval
Is required for certain treasury transactions.

it is the group’s strategy to access a broad
range of sources of finance to obtain both
the quantum required and the lowest cost
compatible with the need for continued
availability.

The group uses financial derivatives solely
for the purposes of managing risk associated
with financing its nermal business activities.
The group does not hoid or issue derivative
financial instruments for financial trading
purposes. The group uses a limited number
of currency swaps and interest rate swaps

to redenominate external borrowings into the
currencies and interest rate coupon required
for group purpeses. The duration of these
swaps matches the duration of the principal
instruments.

The group's policy for the management of
interest rate risk requires that not less than
50% of the group’s borrowings should be

at fixed interest rates, or hedged through

the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate
agreements. At 31 March 2002, interest rates
on 77.0% of the group's borrowings were so
fixed, for pericds ranging from 1 to 29 years.

The group’s business does not involve
significant exposure to foreign exchange
transactions. Cross currency swaps are
employed to exchange foreign currency
barrowings for sterling. The group also has
investments in various assets denominated

in foreign currencies, principally the US dollar
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The Board considers that an increase in the final
dividend is appropriate given the performance
of the group for the year just ended.

and the Eurc. The group's current policy is to
hedge an element of the currency translation
risk associated with certain US dollar and
Euroc denominated assets.

The group's borrowings at 31 March 2002
included £711.2 million of issued bonds,
£512.6 million under the Euro Mediurm Term
Note (‘'EMTN') programme (of which £198.1
miilion is due in less than one year), £570.0
million through the Eurcpean Investrment
Bank {'EIB") (of which £104.4 million is due
in less than one year) and £501.3 million of
other long-term debt (of which £12.4 million
is due in less than onie year). A further
£164.6 million has been borrowed on
uncommitted facilities (including £31.2 million
on overdraft). The group had cash and short-
term deposits at 31 March 2002 amounting
to £48.0 million.

In July 2001, Severn Trent reopened the long
dated sterling bond market for water utilities
with a £125 miilion tap of its existing 2029
6%% bond.

In December 2001, Severn Trent signed a
£150 million borrowing facility with the EIB.

During the year, Severn Trent issued a
further £450 million of bonds from its
EMTN programme including £100 million
of RPl and £25 million of LPI linked funds.
The success of the programme was marked
by International Financing Review who
presented Sevarn Trent with its EMTN
programme of the year award,

The Euro Commercial Paper programme
proved a very flexible source of financing
with up to £449 million outstanding at any
one time.

Further details of the group’s borrowings,
investments and financial instruments are
contained in note 17 to the accounts.

Dividends

Foilowing the anncuncement of the OFWAT
price determination for the period 2001 to
20035, the board stated its intention that for
the period up to 31 March 2005, barring

unforeseen circumstances, dividends per share
would as a minimum be maintained at the
same level as was paid for the year ended
31 March 2000, i.e, a full year dividend of
45.0p. This remains the group's dividend palicy.

The board considers that an increase in

the final dividend is appropriate given the
parformance of the group for the year just
ended. The Board is therefore proposing a
final dividend of 28 56p per share (28.0p)

to be paid on 1 October 2002, This gives 2
total dividend for the year of 45.9p per share
{45.0p), a total year-on-year increase of 29,

The cost of the proposed equity dividends
to the company’s shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2002 was £157.6 million
(£154.3 millian).

Alan Perelman Group Finance Director
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i David Arculus MA MSc Chairman (56)%

Mr Arculus joinad the Board in May 1996 as
a non-executive Director and was appeinted
Chairman on 29 july 1998. He was recently
appointed Chairman of Earfs Court & Qlympia
Group Ltd and resigned as Chairman of IPC
Groug Ltd. Until 1997 he was Group
Managing Director of Emap Plc, the
international media company, where he
played a significant role in the growth of that
company. Mr Arculus was formerly a
journalist and a producer at the BBC and is a
non-executive Director of Barclays ple. In April
this year, he was appointed by the
Government to chair its Bettar Regulation
Task Force,

2 Robert Walker MA (57)

Mr Walker joined the Board in May 1996 as
a non-executive Director. He was appointed
Deputy Chief Executive in July 1999 and
became Group Chief Executive in August
2000. He has previously worked for Procter &
Gamble, McKinsey & Company and PepsiCo
Inc. where he was 2 Division President.

Mr Walker is also a non-executive Director of
Wolseley Plc.

3 Andrew Simon QBE BSc MBA (57)*

Mr Simon joined the Board in October 1986
and is the senjor independent non-executive
Director. He was formerly Chairman of the
Evode Group Plc and is now a non-executive
Director of Asseciated British Ports Holdings
Fle, Hampson Industries Plc and Froperty
Internet plc and is on the Surervisory Board
of SGL Carbon AG in Germany and on the
Board of Finning international inc. in Canada.
Mr Simon is also Executive Vice-Chairman of
Diamant Boart S.A. in Belgium and non-
executive Chairman of Zeus Group Ltd and
Ascent Investments Ltd.

4 Alan Perelman MA MSc (54)

Mr Perelman joined the Board in October
2801 and was appointed Group Finance
Director in Decembier 2001. Prior to this he
was Group Finance Director at Whitbread
from 1920 to 2001. Previous positions held
were Group Finance Director at The Gateway
Corporation and various positions at Rio
Tinto, both in the UK and overseas.

5 Clare Tritton BA QC (66)*

Mrs Tritton joined the Board in November
12G1. She is also & Trustee Director of certain
of the Severn Trent pension schemes.

Mrs Tritton has wide legal experience with
emphasis on European Community law and
particularly on competition law. She served
on the Mcnopolies and Mergers Commission
and on FIMBRA until May 1998. Mrs Tritton
is Chief Executive of Throckmorton Estates
and was, until recently, a non-executive
Director of the Birmingham Royal Baltet Trust
Company. She is alsc a Director of Primary
immunodeficiency Association and serves on
the Country Land and Business Association.

6 Derek Osborn CB (61)*

Mr Osborn joined the Board on 21 September
1998 and is a leading figure in the environmental
world, He was chair of the UK Round Table on
Sustainable Development from 1999 to 2000
and is now a member of the UK Commission
on Sustainable Development. He has been
Chair of UNED UK singe 1996 and of the
International Institute for Environment and
Developrment since 1998. Mr Oshorn is
currently chair of Jupiter Global Green
Investment Trust and of the internaticnal
advisory board of ERM CVS. He was Director
General of Environment Protection in the
Department of the Environment from 1990
to 1995 and Chairman of the Management
Board of the European Environment Agency
from 1995 to 1999.
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7 Brian Duckworth BA FCCA FCIWEM

FIWO (53)

Mr Duckworth joined the Board in November
1994, He has heen with Severn Trent singe
1974 and has worked in various roles,

Mr Duckworth was appointed as Managing
Director of Severn Trent Water Limited on

1 April 1995. In May 2002 he was appointed
as a non-executive Director of Avon Rubber pic.
Mr Duckworth recently retired as President of
the Institution of Water Officers and, until
April 2000, he was Chairman of Water UK, the
water industry’s trade association.

2 Marisa Cassoni BS¢ ACA (50

Ms Casseni joined the Board ¢n 1 September
2001. She is currently Group Finance Director
of Consigria ple, having praviousiy been
Group Finance Director at Britannic Assurance
plc from 1998 to 2001. Ms Cassoni qualified
as an accountant with Deloittes where she
rose to be Corporate Finance Manager. She
later moved to the Prudential Corporaticon,
becoming Group Finance Director of the
Prudential's UK Division in 1994

S Eric Anstee FCA (51)*

Mr Anstee joined the Board in July 1999,
He is Chairman of Mansell pic and a non-
executive Director of SSL International ple.
He was formerly Chief Executive — Financial
Services of Oid Mutua! Group until August
2001, having been Group Finance Director
between Novernber 1998 and December
1999. Prior to that, he was Group Finance
Director of The Energy Group PLC, which
was acquired by Texas Utilities in 1998, and
Group Finance Director of Eastern Group
plc between 1993 and 1995 pricr to its
acquisition by Hanson pic. Before joining
Eastern, he was a senior partner with Ernst
& Young and a member of the Management
Board of the Management Consultancy arm.
He is a member of the Accounting Standards
Board's Urgent Issues Task Farce and a
member of the Senate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

a

10 John McAdam BSc PhD (54)*

Dr McAdam joined the Board on

18 Septermnber 2000. He is a member of the =~
Board of IC1 PLC whera he is Executive Vice
President Coatings and Chief Executive Officer
of ICI Paints, and Executive Vice President
Research, Development and Techriology. He
oversees ICl's activities in Asia. He joined ICl
in 1997 following the acquisition of the
Specialty Chemicals business from Unilever,
where he held a number of senior positions in
Quest Internationai, Birds Eye Wall’s Ltd and
Unichema International.

11 Martin Flower BA (553

Mr Flower joined the Board in June 1996. He
is Group Chief Executive of Coats plc. During
his career at Coats e has been based in
different parts of Eurcpe, Asia Pacific and
South America. He has a particular interest in
and knowledge of Eurgpean and EU affairs.
Mr Flower is also a non-executive Director of
Witliam Prym of Stolberg in Germany.

12 Martin Bettington BSc MechEng MBA (49)
Mr Bettingfon joined the Board in November
1994. He is the Managing Director of Severn
Trent's waste management business, Biffa
Waste Services. Mr Bettington was previously
employed by BET Plc, Biffa's former holding
company. He holds an MBA frem Manchester
Business School.

13 John Banyard BScEng FREng FICE
FCIWEM (57)

Mr Banyard joined the Board in January
1928, He is an executive Director of Severn
Trent Water Limited with responsibility for
asset management. He is also a Director of
UK Water industry Research Limited, a
member of the Court of Cranfield University
and the Royal Academy of Engineering
Visiting Professor of Water Engineering at
Loughborough University, Mr Banyard is a
Chartered Civil Engineer and has worked in 2
number of engineering roles within the group
since joining Severn Trentin 1974, He was
glected a feliow of the Royal Academy of
Engineering in 1997.

*Ngn-executive Director

Board Committees

Membership of Board Committees

is as detailed below:

Audit Committee

A H Simon (Chairrnan)
TD G Arculus

M L Cassoni

F A Qsborn

Secretary - P P Davies

Charitabsle Contributicns Committee

B Duckwaorth (Chairman)
A H Simon

RM Walker

Secretary - P P Davies

Environmental and Corporate Social
Responsibility Advisory Commiltee

£ A Oshorn (Chairman}
T 0 G Arculus

M J Bettington

R Brydor Jannetta

B Duckworth

LF Graziano

J W Oatridge

R M Walker

Secretary - P P Davies

Executive Committee
R M Walker {Chairman}
TDG Areulus

J K Banyard

M J Bettington

P P Davies (and Secretary)
B Duckwarth

P I Gavan

J W Oatridge

A § Perelman

P K Tandon

Remuneration Committee
M C Fiower (Chairman)
TD G Argulus

Dr J B G McAdam
Secretary - P P Davies

Nominations Committee
T D G Arculus (Chairman)
M C Flower

A H Simon

C Tritton

Secretary - P P Davies

Traasury Committee
E E Anstee {Chairman)}
T 8 G Arculus

ML Cassoni

M C Flower

TE jack

A S Perelman

R M Walker

M R Wilson

Secretary ~ P P Davies

Senier independent non-executive Director

A H Simon OBE BSc MBA

Group General Counsel and Company

Secretary
P P Davies LLB. Soficiter
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report, together with the audited financial staterments of the group for the year ended 31 March 2002,

Principal activities

The principa! activities of the group continued to be the supply of water and sewerage services, waste management and the provision of
environmental services. These are described in more detail, together with a review of the group’s husiness and future developments, on
pages 12 to 17 which shouid be read in conjunction with this report.

Details of the principal joint venture, associated and subsidiary undertakings of the group at 31 March 2002 appear in notes 12 and 25
to the financial statements on pages 48, 49, 62 and 63.

Dividend and reserves

Detalls of dividends paid, pavable and proposed are set out in note 8 to the financial statements on page 45. Subject to approval at the

Annual General Meeting, the recommended final dividend of 28.56p (2001: 28.00p) net for gach ordinary share will be paid on 1 Qcteber 2002
te shareholders on the register at the close of business on 28 June 2002, bringing the total for the year to 45.90p (2001: 45.00p}. Proposed
transfers to/from reserves are set out in note 20 to the financial statements on page 54.

Share capital

Details of movements in share capital are shown in note 19 to the financial statements on pages 53 and 54. A special resclution (Resoiution 13)
will be put to shareholders at the Anniual General Meeting which, if passed, will renew the Directors"authority to issue equity securities for cash
without first having to offer these securities to existing shareholders, as is reguired by Section 82 of the Companies Act 1985. The authority
allows the Directors to allet equity securities in connection with a rights issue. It also permits the Directors to allot equity securities up to a
maximum amount equal to 9% of the issued ordinary shares of the company. For these purposes, equity securities are ordinary shares in the
company, but they do not include shares which are allotted under employee share schemes. By exempting the cormpany from the requirements
of Section 89 of the Companies Act 1985, the Directors will have greater flexibility to raise finance. The authority will e valid until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting.

A rights issue would involve the company offering existing sharehalders the opportunity to buy new ordinary shares. The number of ardinary shares
that a shareholder can buy in a rights issue depends on the number he/she already owns. The rules in some countries prevent shareholders
from participating in a rights issue and the resoiution will allow the Directors fo make alternative arrangements for those sharehoiders.

Renewal of authority to purchase own shares

A special resolution will be proposed at this year's Annual General Meeting to authorise the Directors to purchase in the market the company’s
own ordinary shares. The Directors have no present intention that the company should purchase its own ordinary shares. Nevertheless they
would wish to be able to act quickly if circumstances arise in which they consider such purchases to be in the interests of sharehglders
generally. The proposed authority is set out in Resoiution 14. The authority will be limited te approximately 10% of the company’s issued
ordinary share capital as at 31 March 2002. The minimurn price per ordinary share payable by the company (exclusive of expenses) will be
85%.p, the nominal value of each ordinary share. The maximum 1o be paid per ardinary share on any exercise of such authority {exclusive
of expenses) will be an amount not more than 5% above the average of the middle market quotations for ordinary shares of the company
as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days immediately preceding the date of each purchase.
Purchases will only be made on the London Stock Exchange and only in circumstances where the Board believes that they are in the
interests of shareholders generally. Furthermore, purchases of ordinary shares will only be made if the Board believes that they would result
in an increase in earpings per share. Any purchases will be financed out of profits aveilable for distribution.

Supplier payment policy

ndividual operating companies within the group are responsible for establishing appropriate policies with regard tc the payment of their
suppliers. The companies agree terms and conditions under which business transactions with suppliers are conducted. It is group policy
that, provided a suppfier is complying with the relevant terms and conditions, including the prompt and complete submission of all specified
documeantation, payment will be made in accordance with agreed terms. it is group policy to ensure that suppliers know the terms on which
payment will take place when business is agreed.

The effect of the group’s payment policy is that its trade creditors at the year-end are estimated as representing no greater than 30 days’
purchases (2001: 34 days).

Contributions for political and charitable purposes
Donations to charitable organisations during the year amounted to £311,627 (2001: £284,235). No political donations were made during the year.

Employees

The group employed 14,571 people as at 31 March 2002 (2001: 14,318}, Of these 4,719 (32.4%) were employed in the regulated water
business, 4,005 (27.5%) in the Biffz waste business and 4.665 (32.0%) in the Severn Trent Services businesses. Approximately one third
of our employees are based outside the UK, mainly in the USA, Belgium and [taly.

The proportions of employees in each of the major business units continues to reflect the diversity of the group’s activities.




Seyern Trart 2l¢ Annual Report and Accounts 2002 23

Severn Trent Water has now achieved the bulk of the manpower savings required under the current Periodic Review. All of the reductions
were achieved on a voluntary basis with harmonious relationships being retained both with employees and their representatives throughout
this difficult period. :

In Biffa Waste Services, the integration of the former UK Waste organisation has been successfully completed. Discussions with the employees
and their recognised trade unions on the harmonisation of terms and conditions of employment are ongoing.

In Severn Trent Services, there has been a continuing process of consolidation and rationalisation within each of the main business units.

Group companies continue fo encourage communication with and between employees. Each of the major business units has its own in-house
magazine, uses team briefings and 'tool box' talks and has an intranet faciflity which covers all of their main locations.

The group-wide intranet was introduced in the summer of 2001 and has initially been rolled out to 800 employees across the group in the
UK, Europe and the USA. It communicates to senior managers such topics as strategic direction and perfoermance and group-wide initiatives.
It also facilitates cross business collaboration and consultation between sales and marketing teams and with technology experts, to stimulate
participation and generate new ideas to improve our products, services and the way we work,

Group companies are increasingly using employee surveys to monitor the effectiveness of our communication processes.

A summary cf the main principles of the company’s Code of Business Principles and Conduct, which is formally endarsed by the Board,
is on the group website (www.severntrent.com). This is a key part of the group's corporate social responsibility position and detailed policies
and procedures are in place to disseminate the code and monitor its implementation in all group companies.

Group companies continue to maintain good relationships with the recognised trade unions and their directly elected reprasentatives. In Severn
Trent Water, to replace the previous negotiating machinery. a Company Forum has been introduced which will have a strong business focus and
aims to build a strong partnership with all employee representatives and encourage active participation,

The third annual meeting of the group's European Consultative Council took place in October 2001, These meetings are working well, fostering
dialogue and a better understanding of the issues facing our businesses in Europe.

Each of the major business units has ongoing mechanisms to ensure that there are technically and rmanagerially competent staff available

{o meet current and future business needs and customer expectations. To ensure that, at the highest level, this is managed across the group.
a Leadership Development programme, based on agreed competencies, has been introduced initially covering the top 120 managers, but with
plans to extend the programme to the top 250 managers in due course.

in preparation for changes in waste management legislation, Biffa is delivering a programme of seminars to managers across the group
o ensure that appropriate advice is given to customers and that best envirenmental practice is shared across group companies.

A series of group-wide management conferences, ‘Experiencing Severn Trent’ involving 300 delegates, has taken place to build cress-company
awareness of business strategy. and to help develop cross-functional relationships.

The group’s ‘Lifestyle’ flexible penefits scheme is now available to arcund 2.000 UK employees and from October 2002 this will be increased
to over 5,000 empioyees, with further increases envisaged in following years.

Group companies continue to meet the minimum requirements of the employment tegislation in each of the countries in which we operate
and in most cases we also seek to operate at best practice levels,

Diversity

Group companies continually review their diversity policies and practices to ensure that they comply with the legislative requirements of each
location in which we operate and alsoc meet the company's Code of Business Principles and Conduct. This ensures that we attract and retain
the best possible workforce that reflects the diversity of manpower resources avallable.

‘Whistie blowing’ procedures are in place to deal with allegations of harassment, buliying etc and any other breaches of the company’s codes
and values. We are members of the Employer's Forum on Disability and continue to endorse their Agenda for Customers.

Health and safety

As in previous years, the group companies continue in their commitment o improve healtn and safety performance by further developing
their health and safety managerent systems. This has been against a backdrop of extensive growth through acquisition, which has presented
a variety of challenges including the need to reconcile a number of operating cultures. In response, the businesses have undertaken extensive
reviews of their health and safety procedures and have developed detailed programmes of work designed to align operating systems and
address any newly identified risks,
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Directors' report

Curing the year performance against plans has been continually monitered by senior management, at the Group Health and Safety Executive
Committee. In addition, further Health and Safety audits have been undertaken which have indicated significant progress towards achieving
our Health and Safety objectives, :

However, despite this, it is with regret that the group reports two employee fatalities this year and an incident on property owned by the group,
which resulted in the death of a member of the public.

1t is important to consider all the aspects of any incident and identify any lessons that can be iearned regardless of the exact circumstances
of the incident itself. We continually seek to identify the hazards associated with our businesses, taking appropriate action to reduce exposure
to risk and continue in our commitment to improve the working environment, driving down the nurnber of incidents that cccur.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 11 June 2002 the company had been notified of the following substantial shareholdings:

Number of ordinary shares of 65%.,p each %
FMR Corporation and Fidelity internationa! Limited 17,167,178 5.00
Legal & General Investment Management Limited 10,376,057 3.02

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited -

Separate accounts for Severn Trent Water Limited are prepared and sent to the Director General of Water Services, A copy of these accounts

is available from the web site of Severn Trent Water Limited (www.stwater.co.uk) or on written request to the Company Secretary {(at the address
given on the back cover). There is no charge for this publication.

Research and development
Expenditure on R&D including amounts capitalised was £5.2 million (2001: £5.7 million} and is cortinuing to identify an encouraging number
of opportunities for explaitation.

Severn Trent Water continues to concentrate on development and innovations to deliver efficiencies in AMP3 period, whilst increasing its
understanding of the tools and technigues required to address issues for the next strategic business pfan. For example. the new Biological
Mutrient Removal Plart at Derby wilt provide valuable information for further deployment in the AMP4 period.

On potable water, the Sorb33 heavy metal removal process, mentioned in last year's Report, is attracting consideratile interest and an
agreement has been reached with Bayer AG for deployment of this technology, worldwide, Filtration technologies are also being evaluated
to improve processes involved in capital maintenance work.

Cost effective process enhancerments to wastewater treatment are also being developed for plants facing tighter discharge standards.
This includes storm water treatment systems where future regulatory interest is expected in intermittent treated wastewater discharges.

Wastewater treatrment plants have utilised anaerobic digestion technology for odour control and bigsolids breakdown for many years.
Recent work has indicated the potential for deploying this process on the treatment of some municipal sclid waste, which the group
is in a good position to exploit.

Capitzal Controls in the UK completed the ECLOX water test kits project for the Ministry of Defence, winning two awards for safety and
innovation. Development has now started on a cutdown version for envirenmental monitoring.

R&D effort at Severn Trent Metering Services has focused on extending the capabilities of the SmartReader™ probe {o interface with the
new billing system developed by Severn Trent and with the Route management and billing systems used in the USA.

Numerous water purification projects are being developed in the USA. Two notable examples are - Omnipure & HR, a2 compact, single stage
electrochlorination/macerator for small marine vessels, and a split flow CT2 cell, which reduces chiorate byproduct by 80% on product
hypochlorite while increasing efficiency by 20% for salt and energy use.

Severn Trent Laboratories in the UK continues to develop analytical methodologies to improve efficiency while ensuring robust defensible data
is provided to its clients. An improved cclumn injection technique for intreducing sample extract into a gas chromatograph has, this year, been
put inte production and may prove 1o have a number of diverse applications including food analysis.

Other werk includes the use of an ‘*efectronic nose’ for identifying organic compounds at water treatment works. which is being investigated
Liointly with a key supplier.

iffa Waste Services has a leading role in a number of areas, funded partly at its own direct expense but also through the mechanism
f the Landfill Tax Credif Scheme and, in conjunction with the Royal Society for Nature Conservation, through its Biffaward funding baody.

pecialised treatment systems are being developed for the laboratory testing and targe scale handling of organic and inorganic hazardous
astes, centred on the Wedneshury treatment plant.
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Joint investigative work is undertaken with ieading universities into landfil! operation and management issues in the UK, for example, landfill
gas management systems with the University of Nottingham and carbon/methane fluxes in landfill with the University of Oxford. Further work
on the management of specific ‘problem’ waste is being undertaken on tyres and rubber with the University of Cardiff and an the management
of chemically treated timber with the Timber Trades Research Association.

Relational information databases are being developed to assist and mprove ongoing policy development. A consultation process is underway,
with the Institute of Waste Management and the Local Government Association, inte the requirements of unitary, district and county councils
for an on-line waste management monitoring database for domestic waste flows throughout the UK.

Support has been provided for the National Society of Clean Air to investigate process fluxes of waste and gasecus atmospheric throughputs
from various types of direct combustion involved in waste to energy conversion processes.

Biffz is alsc supporting a programme tc analyse rescurce flows through various geographic, material and industrial systerns, aimed at informing
future policy thinking to achieve environment impact reduction targets.

Corporate governance

The Financial Services Authority Combined Code (the ‘Code’) Compliance Statement.

The company attaches great significance to the maintenance of good corporate governance procedures and adherence to best practice
recognising that they play their part in creating a framework which can provide increased benefits for shareholders. The company regards
the Code as a valuabie development of previocus corporate governance arrangements and recommendations which it has embraced in recent
years. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2002 the company has been in compliance with the Code provisions set out in Section 1 of the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance, with the exception of Mr Costin’s service contract, but as explained in the Remuneration Report
on page 28, he ceased to be a Director in December 2001,

Statements by the Directors covering their responsibilities in relation to the group’s system of internal contrel and the adoption of the going
concern basis for the preparation of the financial staterments are set out on pages 26 and 27 respectively.

The Board

A list of Directors and their background details appears on pages 20 and 21. The Board currently consists of five executive Directors and
eight non-exacutive Directors. The Board has reviewad the status of the non-executive Directors and has confirmed that it regards them as
being independent. Mr Simon will retire from the Beoard in July 2002 and Mrs Tritton's appointment is to be reviewed next year in the light
of best practice. The Board meets at least eleven times each year and convenes additional meetings to deal with major matters as and when
these arise. The Board has established a formal schedule of matters which are specifically reserved to it for decisicn thereby ensuring that it
maintaing control over strategies, financial and key cperational issues. It has also put in place an organisational structure with clearly defined
lines of responsibility and delegations of authority, which are reviewed from time to time.

Board committees

The Board has delegated certain powers and duties to the Board committees all of which operate within clearly defined terms of reference and
in accordance with the Code, where applicable. All the committees maet regularly throughaout the year except for the Nominations Commitiee
which meets when required. The membership of the committees is set cut on page 21.

The Nominations Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment to the Board of both executive and non-executive
Directors, considers succession planning and related issues. The Remuneration Committee's principal terms of reference are set out in the
Remuneration Report on pages 28 to 30.

The main responsibiiities of the Audit Committee are referred to later under ‘Internal control’,

The Treasury Committee detarmines matters of Treasury policy and its approval is required for certain treasury transactions. The group's
treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance with its Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy statement. Compliance with these
policias and procadures is monitared by management, by the group's internal auditors and, to the extent necessary 1o support their audit
report, by the external auditors.

The Environmental and Corporate Social Responsitility Advisory Committes’s principal terms of reference are to help to further develop both
the company's environmental leadership, strategy and objectives and address matters relating to corporate social responsibility. Additional
details of the company's environmental objactives may be found on pages 26 and 27.

The Charitable Contributions Committee meets regularly throughout the year to decide upon donations and support to charities and similar
worthy causes.

Fir:a!iiy, the Severn Trent Executive Committee has delegated authority to approve capital and other expenditure within defined limits which
have been reviewed during the year by the Board. Proposals involving major undertakings or matters of strategic significance are subiject to the
detailed review and approval of the main Board. The Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing the financial and cperational performance
of all companies within the group and in establishing, or supporting the Board in establishing policies covering organisational and employment
matters,
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Direciors’ report

Directors
Details of current Directors are shown on pages 20 and 21.

Ms M L Cassoni jeined the Board as a non-executive Director on 1 September 2001. Mr A S Perelman joined the Board as an executive
Director on 1 October 2001. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the company, both Directors will retire at this year's Annual
General Meeting and offer themselves for reappointment.

Mr M J Bettington and Mr M C Flower retire from the Board by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Mr A H Simon will retire from the Board at the conclusicn of this year's Annuz! General Meeting but will not be seeking reappointment.

Mr Bettington has a service contract, which provides for not less than 12 months' written notice of termination by the company and not less
than six months’ written notice by him expiring at any time. Mr Perelman has & service contract which provides for not less than 24 months'
written notice of termination by the company, reducing to not less than 12 moenths’ written notice ot termination by the company at the end of
the first year of service and not less than six months’ written notice by him expiring at any time. Ms Cassoni and Mr Flower, being non-executive
Directors, do not have service contracts with the company.

The Directors of the company 2t 31 March 2002 and their interests in the shares of the company can be found on pages 31 and 32.
No Director had an interest in the shares of any subsidiary undertaking. No contract significant to the company’s business in which a Director
had a material interest was entered into during the year.

Internal control

The Board has cverall responsibility for the group's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board has formally
established policies and processes for identifying and evaluating the significant risks faced by the group. There are establiished procedures
for managing the risks facing the group, of which the key elements are: an organisation structure with clear iines of accountability; regular,
structured reviews of business risk by senior management; a scheme of delegated authority; pre-approval of plans, budgets and significant
investrments; and monthly reporting of financial results and other key business monitors.

The executive Directors and senior management teams of each of the principal subsidiary companies have identified the risks facing their
businesses and have made an assessment of the impact of those risks. The controls that are in place to manage each of the mare significant
risks in each unit have been identified within a comprehensive contrel framework and an assessment has been made of the effectiveness of
these controls.

The Directors of each of the principal subsidiary companies regularly consider new risks and threats and control weaknesses that may have
become apparant and report at six-monthly intervals to the Group Chief Executive. They also conduct an annual review of the risks facing
their businesses and report on this review in one of the six-monthly reports.

The Board reviews risk management and the effectiveness of the system of internal control threugh the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
meets three times a year and both the internal and external auditors have direct access to the Chairman of the Cornmittee. The Audit
Committee receives reports on a six-monthly frequency from the Group Chief Executive on the significant risks faced by the group, an
assessment of the effectiveness of controls over each of those risks and an action plan to improve controls where this has been assessed as
necessary. Any significant control weaknesses that have been identified are also reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also
receives reports from internal audit and from management on specific control issues, agrees audit strategies and reviews reports fram
management on the financial resuits of the group. In addition, the external auditors present their audit strategy to the Audit Committee and
report on significant control issues upon completion of their audit. The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports to the Board as do the
external auditors.

The Directors confirm that there is an ongoing process for the identification, evaluation and management of the significant risks faced by the
group. This process has been in place throughout the year ended 31 March 2002 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts. It accords with the guidance in the report on ‘Internal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code'.

A sound systemn of internal control is designed to manage risks but not necessarily eliminate them and therefore provides reasonable but
not absoiute assurance against a company failing to meet its business objectives or against material errors, losses or fraud or breaches of
laws or regulations.

Environment, corporate social responsibility and sustainable development
Severn Trent's corporate vision Is to be at the forefront of the environmental services industry. Environmental leadership, alongside quality
and service, is a core value of the company.

The company has a policy staternent that defines how the vision and values are incorporated into the company’s activities in the context
of sustainable development and corporate social responsibility. This policy statement is reviewed annually and is published on the
company’s website.
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The company's performance in relation to this poiicy is the responsibility of the Chief Executive and is overseen by the Board. To support
this process:

+ the Board has constituted an Environmental and Corporate Social Responsibility Advisory Committee, whose remit is to advise on the
company’s activities and programmes in the relation to the environment and other aspects of corperate social responsibility, and a Charitable
Contributions Committee which is regponsibie for aliccating the budget for charitable contributions ag approved by the Board each year;

« there is a company-wide environmental management system, certified to the international environrmental management systern standard
SO 14001, and a company-wide Community Affairs Programme;

» the company's Environmental Management Groug, and also the Community Affairs Forum, both of which include senior representatives
from each of the businesses, co-crdinate the implementation of these policies.

The company reports annually and publicly on its environmental performance, corporate social responsibility and contribution to sustainabie
developrnent; the same report sets out the group's strategy and targets for the future. The most recent edition of this report, ‘Stewardship’
may be obtained from our website www.severntrentcom or by sending a request for a free copy to the address given on the back cover,

it is part of the company's strategy to play an active part in promoting policies and actions that will contribute to the protection of the
ervironment, to corporate social responsibility and to sustainable development. For exampie, the company is a rmember of the World Business
Council for Sustainable Cevelopment and sits on the Leadership Team of Business in the Envircament - the UK based, business-led campaign
for corparate environmental responsibility. The company engages regularly with representatives of local, regional and national Governments
and with non-Governmental organisations on matters concerning the environment, corporate social responsibility and sustainable develcpment;
the company and its subsidiary businesses also cortribute to the discussions of their relevant trade associations. The views and values that are
advocated in these arenas are consistent with the policy statement referred to above and are described in the ‘Stewardship’ report,

The company’s internal control system, described above, encompasses the censideration of risks that may be considered of an environmental,
social or ethical nature with particular attention being paid to those risks likely to have a significant bearing on the company's principal activity
- the provision of environmental services.

Economic and Monetary Union
Severn Trent started preparations for the introduction of the eurc in mid 1987,

All our subsidiary and associated companies in the “first wave' countries changed base accounting currencies to the eurc by September 2001
in preparation for the end of the transition period arc the introduction of euro notes and coins on 1 January 2002, Experience from this
conversion work and from the work of other utilities in the eurozone has been a useful input into Severn Trent Water's conversion planning.

Severn Trent Water developed an internai changeover plan at an early stage to be ready for the significant system changes that would be
necessary if the UK enters the EMU. This plan has teen maintained and where necessary updated and extended during the last 12 months.

The government’s assessment of the five economic tests will be published by June 2003, Severn Trent Water continues to work closely with
HM Treasury in the planning of a possible UK transition period and 2lso plays an active, leading role in Water UK's Eurc group. These activities
have enabled Severn Trent to plan a cost effective changeover.

Communications with shareholders and the Annual General Meeting

The company attaches considerable importance to the effectiveness of its communications with shareholders. Prior to the Annual General
Meeling, private investors are given the opportunity (o mee{ the Board and also to question thern during the meeting itself. They are
encouraged to participate in the meeting. Photograghic displays and literature are available to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

to demonstrate the nature and extent of the group’s environmenta!l services, The company also responds to enguiries from shareholders as
they arise throughout the year. The company will, on request, provide a summary of the proceedings of the Annual General Meeting. Regular
communication is maintained with institutional sharghotders and fund managers through meetings and presentations. Such communications
are 3ensitive 1o {he need not to disclose potentially price-sensitive information.

Going concern

Based upon its review of the group’s budget for 2002/2003, outline business plans for the next five years and the committed borrowing facilities
available to the group, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the group and the company have adeguate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable fufure. Accordingly the finzncial staternents set out on pages 34 1o 63 have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Auditors

A res?»t'gnﬂg)oposmg the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors will be put to the Annual General Meeting.
o r\:) ‘\_.\__.._-—-—"'"7

By order of the Board -

P P Davies LL.B. Solicitor

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

11 June 2002
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Remuneration report

The Remuneration Committee (‘the Committee”) of the Board comprises the following non-executive Directors:
M C Flower (Chairman), T D G Arculus and DrJ D G McAdam.

The Committee’s role is to determine the remuneration policy and levels of pay and employment benefits for the executive Directors of
Severn Trent Plg. The Commitiee does not deal with the fees payable to non-executive Directors, including the Chairman, for which the
Board has the sole determination.

The Committee considers that the company has complied with the principles set out in the Financial Services Authority Combined Code
(‘'the Code") concerning the Remuneration Committee’s composition and operation.

In carrying cut its respansibitities, the Committee receives professional advice from Andersen. This arrangement has been reviewed and
confirmed during the current year.

1 Remuneration policy

The policy of the Committee is to determine, and regularly review and update, as appropriate, a framewcrk within which total remuneration
packages for executive Directors can be considered. The aims of the pelicy are to remunerate executive Directors at levels appropriate to the
scope and complexity of their roles and having regard to performance as weil as recognising the need to be competitive with businesses of
similar size, complexity and geographica!l spread. The company seeks to attract, retain and motivate the highest quality of management for
the cngoing efficient running and development of the company, taking into account the interests of sharehclders, customers, employees and
the lgcal community. In framing its remuneration policy, the company has given fult consideration to Schedule A of the Code.

2 Service contracts

The service contracts of most of the existing executive Directors have been amended and are now terminable by the company giving not
less than 12 months' written notice (other than in the case of new appcintments from outside the group whera the contract has given an
initial entitlement to a 24 month notice period reducing to 12 months at the end of the first year of service) and by the Cirectors giving

not less than six months’ notice of termination. This approach has been applied in the appointment of Mr A S Perelman. This is in line with
the recommendations of the Code and is considered compatible with the need to attract and retain the highest calibre of executive Director.

In the cases of Directors who previously had written notice periods in excess of 12 months, contractual terms have been put in place
which define levels of compensation payments that might be payable in the event of early termination.

in the case of Mr R A S Costin, whilst the Committee decided that he should retain his two-year contract, he resigned as a Director of
the company in December 2001. Compensation for the balance of his contract only was paid. All current executive Directors are now
on 12 month contracts, except for the initial transitional arrangements following the appointment of Mr A S Perelman.

Tha contracts for the executive Directors do not contain provision for any payments or for fermination in the situation of 2 change in control.

Mr M J Bettington and Mr A S Perelrman are the subject of reappointment as executive Directors at the Annual General Meating and the
Committee believes that their extensive knowiedge and experience fuily justify the continuation of the contractual arrangements which
are outlined above.

3 Executive Directors

i Basic salary and benefits

The Committee has received independent advice on the appropriate level of salaries for executive Directors which takes into account the need
o attract, retain and motivate executive Directors as well as maintaining the competitive position of the company within the market. The table
of Directors' emoluments, on page 30, shows the basic fees and salaries of executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2002,

The Committee has balanced the need to continue to pay salaries designed to attract, retain and motivate executive Directors with

a requirement to be responsible and prudent in the interest of shareholders as weli as having regard to the general level of inflation.

The Committee recognises that it has a responsibifity to shareholders to ensure salary and benefit levels remain competitive for the sectors
in which the company operates. To fulfil this obligation, advice is sought from Andersen in the light of developments such as the completion
of the integration of UK Waste and the general expansion of the company's activities. Notwithstanding this, the Committee will ensure that
remuneration levels continue to reflect a prudent and responsible approach to executives' pay.

The principal benefits for executive Directors include the use of a motor car, fuel, private medical insurance, {ife assurance and an incapacity
bensfits scherme. In January 2002, the executive Directors were allowed to ‘flex’ these benefits under the company’s Lifestyle scheme. As they
are flexing within the same value of overall package, their individual choices are not reflected in the table of Directors’ emoluments on page 30.

ii Performance related annual bonus

Executive Directors are eligible for annual bonuses to encourage improved performance, measured by reference to both financial and
non-financial factors. Performance targets are established to align Directors’ interests with shareholders and are measured by reference

to profitability, together with specific targets for quality, service, environmental performance and the achievernent of personal objectives.
Benchmarks to monitor overall performance are established at the beginning of each year under review. Financial performance accounts for
60% of the bonus potential and the balance is dependent on perfarmance in respect of the remaining factors. The performance requirements
are stretching and involve an assessment of up to ten parameters for each executive Cirector. The maximum amount payable under the bonus
scheme in 200172002 was 50% of basic salary (2000/2001: 40%), the additional 10% cnly being awarded for supericr financial performance.
The actual bonuses awarded for the year ended 31 March 2002 are shown in the table of Directors’ emoluments on page 30.
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i Long-term incentives
A Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP') for executive Directors was approved by shareholders at the 1997 Annual General Meeting and amended
with shareholder approval at the 2001 Annual General Meeting. ‘

Performance for the 1999 and 2000 TIPs is measured only by reference to Total Shareholder Return (TSR} over a three-year period
cormpared to the TSR of similar privatised utility companies. The performance for the 2001 LTIP is measured by reference to a combination
of TSR and Ecenomic Profit (EP') targets.

The maximum allocation that may be made to an individual Director in any year is such number of shares as have a market value equal

to 100% of basic salary. Shares are allocated annually by the Committee but are not released to executive Directors for a period of three
years thereafter, provided that the TSR has achieved a prescribed ranking in comparison with the other companies and, in the case of the
2001 LTiP, that the EP targets have also been met. An allocation of shares equivalent to 50% of salary was awarded {0 executive Directors
and other senior executives for the performance periods effective from 1 April 1899 and 1 April 2000, For the performance period effective
from 1 Aprii 2001, Mr Walker received an ailocation of shares eguivalent to 100% of his salary and the remaining executive Directors received
allocations equivalent to 70% of their salaries. The performance criteria are specific to each of the Awards and changes in the number of
comparator companies have been necessary as a result of consolidation and merger activity in the privatised utility sectors and because

of differing regulatory regimes. The 1999 and 2000 Awards are based on a comparator table of 11 companies. The 2001 Award which

has additional EP targets includes six comparators. No shares are released for comparator TSR performance below the median. Neither

the Chairman nor the other non-executive Directors participate in the LTIP.

.

iv Pensions
The company's policy is to offer all executive Directors membership of the Senior Staff Pension Scheme (‘the Scheme’). The total number
of current executive Directors who participate in the Scheme is five.

This Scheme is a funded Infand Revenue approved final salary occupationa! pension scheme which provides;

+ @ normal retirement age of 60 years,

« an overall pension at normal retirement age of two-thirds of final pensionable salary, subject to the completion of 20 years’ pensionable service;
= life cover of 4 x pensionable earnings;

+ pension payable in the event of retirement on grounds of ill health;

+ @ spouse’s pension gn death.

The company has a future obligation in respect of Mr R A § Costin. Mr R M Walker, and Mr A S Perelman, all of whom joined this Scheme after
1 June 1989 and are therefore subject to the Inland Revenue earnings cap (2001/2002: £95,400). to pay the difference betwean their pension
entittement based upen the relevant portion ¢f their salary and the maximum amount payable had the cap net been in place, The cbligation

is unfunded. The amount charged to the profit and toss account in the year for this future obligation was £213,300 for Mr Costin, £245,532
for Mr Walker, and £80,110 for Mr Perelman.

The Committee decided that in cases of executive Directors where the employees’ pensicn contribution based on their actual annual salary
exceeds the Inland Revenue Limit (15% of pension cap) the executive Director would only be required te contribute up to the Infand Revenue
timit, although their pensicn would still be tased cn their actual earnings.

A table detailing the Directors’ pension provisions as required by the Code is shown on page 30.

4 Chairman and other non-executive Directors

Mr T D G Arculus became Chairman of the company on 29 July 1998 and is paid fees of £100,000 (£120.000 with effect from 1 August 2001,
£117,600 with effect from 1 January 2002) per annum. In additicn, the company contributes £26,280 (£28,680 with effect from 1 January
2002} per annum to Mr Arculus's private pension arrangements, as well as providing a driver’s allowance, private health scheme insurance
and car provision. In addition Mr Arculus receives with effect from 1 August 2001 a further fee of £10,000 per annum paid in the form of
shares in the company.

Mr Arculus does not participate in any of the company's pension arrangements, share or bonus schemes or have the benefit of the provision
of fuel for the car.

The cther non-executive Directors are paid fees, which are reviewed from time to time by the Board. They were last increased in 1995, With
effect from 1 August 2001 they are set at £27.500 per annum with £25,000 being paid in cash and £2,500 being paid in the form of shares
in the company. In addition non-executive Directors whe chair Committees of the Board, or act as a trustee to the company's pension schemes
receive an additional fee of £2,500 (£5,000 with effect from 1 August 2001) per annum and the senior independent non-executive Director
receives £2,250 per annum. Non-executive Directors who are appcinted as non-executive Directors of subsidiary companies receive an
additional fee of £10,000 per annum for each such appointment. Non-executive Directors do not participate in any incentive plan nor is any
pensicn provision made for them except as mentioned above in relztion to the Chairman. The non-executive Directors do not have service
contracts or consultancy agreements with any group company.
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Rer~_.neration report

5 Directors’ emoluments

The emcluments of the Chairman, the executive Direciors and fees payable to the non-executive Directors are as follows:

Benefits

Basic salary Annual Total Total
and fees? e kind banus Othee: 200172002  2000/2Q01
£000 £000 £000 £0C0 £000 £000

Chairman and other non-executive Directors
TD G Arculus 1195 15.7 - 8.7 1409 115.2
E E Anstee 309 - - 0.6 315 29.3
M L Cassoni (from 1.9.01) 16.0 -~ - - 16.0 -
M C Flower 40.9 - - - 409 295
J D G McAdam 26.7 - - - 26.7 135
F A Csborn 509 -~ - - 509 363
A H Simon 33.1 - - 0.7 338 30.3
C Tritton 311 - - - 31.1 230

Executive Directors

J K Banyard 162.2 16.1 6l.e 0.4 240.3 2279
M J Bettingten 211.2 152~ 55.6 - 282.0 2735
V Cocker {retired 30.10.00) - - - - - 181.2
R A S Costin (retired 21.12.01) 1395 16.0 59.0 0.1 2146 2639
B Duchkwaorth 2163 15.7 82.2 01 314.3 3005
A S Perelman (from 1.10.01) 165.0 125 825 768 3368 -
R M Walker? 356.0 239 112.7 01 4927 414.4
Total emoluments 1,599.3 115.1 453.6 845 22525 19435

U QOther emoluments represent expenses chargeable zo UK income tax paid to Cirectors. Inciuded within this category for Mr Pereiman,

is £76,763 of relocation allowances,

¢ Aggregate emoluments to Mr Walker, as highest pz d Director, amounted to £492,700 (2001: £414,400).

%)

included within fees for the non-executive Directors. are amounts elected to be received by way of shares rather than as emoluments,

to encourage participation in line with best practics. 133 shares with a gross value of £1,666.67 were received by all of the non-exgcutive
Directars for the period from 1 August 2001, with 1ne exception of Mr Arculus who received 551 shares with a gross value of £6,779.60

and Ms Casscni who received 116 shares with a gross value of £1,458.33.

4 Mr Costin's salary and benefits in kind are the amcunts earned up to the date he retired as a member of the Board (21 December 2001).
In the financial year, he received a further £52,70C in salary and £6,100 cof benefits in kind in relation to the period following his retirement

from the Board to 31 March 2002, Mr Costin retire2 from the company on 12 May 2002.

Increase in accrued pension
{excluding inflation) in the year

Accumulated total
accrued pension

Transfer value of the
incrzase in acerued

to 31 March 2002° 31 March 20C2 benefits®
£000 £000 £000

Directors’ pension provisions?®
J K Banyard 7.2 1116 105.7
M J Bettington 10.3 880 1009
R A S Costin 5.9 63.3 915
B Duckworth 7.6 1168 855
A S Perelman 5.5 55 64.6
R M Walker 15.0 32.3 2252

! The amount of increase in accrued pension during the year excludes the effects of inflation, measured by reference to an estimate

of the increase in the retail prices index between Mzrch 2001 ang March 2002.

2 The transfer value of the increase in accrued benefits is calculated in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11, less a deduction
in respect of each member’s own pension contributions during the period. It does not represent a sum payable to individual Directors

and cannot therefcre meaningfully be added to anrual remuneration.

* In addition, the company contributes £26,280 per annum (£28,680 with effect from 1 January 2002) to Mr Arculus's private pension

arrangements.
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Directors’ interests

The Directors of the company at 31 March 2002 and their beneficial interests in the shares of the company were as follows:

i Beneficial holdings

At 1 April
2001 or
subsequent
date of At 3! March
appontment 2002
Mumber of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
N B o o ] L . B 6??’:9p each  65%sp each
Chairman and other non-executive Directors
T D G Arculus (Chairman) 10,000 10,551
£ E Anstee 2,000 2,133
M L Cassoni - 116
M C Flower 1,000 1,133
J D G McAdam - 133
F A Osborn 510 643
A H Simon 1,985 2118
C Tritton - 2,727 2860
Executive Directors
J K Banyard 14,988 15,183
M J Bettington 9,085 9,124
B Duckworth 18,061 18217
A S Perglman _ -
R M Walker 569 598

At 11 Jure
20C2

Number =f
ordinary
shares of

65%sp each

10,551
2,133
116
1,133
133
043
2,118
2,860

15,183
9,144
18,217

598

Messrs Banyard, Bettington, Duckworth, Perelman and Walker have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 65%.p each by virtue
of havirg received contingent awards of shares under the Severn Trent Plc Long Term [ncentive Plan (the ‘Plan’} on 30 July 1999, 10 August
2000 and 30 August 2001. The Plan cperates on a three-year rolling basis. The Severn Trent Employea Share Ownership Trust is operated in
conjunction with the Plan. Awards do not vest until they have been held in trust for three years and specific performance criteria have been
satisfied. The details of the performance criteria are exptained in the Remuneration Report on page 29. The individual interests, which represent

the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each individual could become entitled, are as follows:

At L April At 31 March

2001 2002

Number of Number ¢f

ordinary Awards Awarded ordinary

shares of lapsed during sharas of

B85%:p each  during year year  65%ap each

J K Banyard 20,981 (4975) 15450 31,456
M J Bettington 25,238 (5,825) 20,109 39,522
8 Duckworth 29,331 (7,038) 20,600 42,893
A S Pereiman - - 31428 31428
R M Walker 13012 - 48,435 61,447

No awards vested during the year, consequently there has been no gain on vesting (2001: £171,138).

No further awards have been made under the Plan as at 11 June 2002.

The performance period for aliocations of shares made in 1999 ended on 31 March 2002, The Remuneration Committee has subsequently
determined, based on the company’s Total Shareholder Return over the three-year performance period, that participants are not entitled

to any of the shares allocated. The 1999 contingent ailocations of shares are meluded in the table above.
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Direciors' interests

i Options over Ordinary shares

At the Exercised Granted At the
start of the during the during the end of the Year Date from
year (No. year (No. year {No. year (No. of grant Exsrcise which
of shares) of shares) of shares) of shares) of sption price (p)  exercisable  Expiry date
Executive share options
J K Banyard 7,800 - - 7.800 1993 625 Dec 1996 Dec 2003
B Duckwortn 8,528 - - 8528 1953 625 Det 1996 Dec 2003
Sharesave options!
1 K Banyard 1,633 - - 1,633 1997 528 Apr 2002 Sep 2002
1,024 - - 1024 2000 473 May 2003 Oct 2003
- - 866 266 2002 548 May 2005 Oct 2005
M J Bettington 2,158 - - 2,158 1998 799 Apr 2003 Sep 2003
B Duckworth 1,306 - - 1,306 1997 528 Apr2002 Sep 2002
1,228 - - 1228 2000 473 May 2003 Oct 2003
- - 693 693‘ 2002 548 May 2005 Oct 2005
R M Walker 3,235 - - 3235 2001 568 May 2008 Oct 2008

! The executive Directors, in common with all eligible UK employees of the group, are entitled to participate in the company's Inland
Revenue approved Sharesave Scheme.

2 MNone of the executive Directors exercised any share sptions during the year 50 there has been no gain on exercise {2001: £13,08%5).

¥ No executive share options in respect of executive Cirectors were granted or lapsed during the year. At 21 March 2002 there were
188 other executives participating in the group's Share Option Scheme (2001: 123),

¢ At the close of business on 28 March 2002 (last treding day) the mid-market price of the company’s shares was 738p (20 March 2001
634.5p) and the range during the year was 670p toc 784p.




The Directors are required by the United
Kingdom Companias Act 1985 {o prepare
financial staterments for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the company and the group as at
the end of the financial year and of the profit
or loss of the group for the financial year.

The Directors consider that in preparing the
financial statements, the company has used
appropriate accounting policies, consistently
apptied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates, and that
all United Kingdom Accounting Standards
which they consider applicable have been
followed, any material departures being

We have audited the financial statements
which comprise the group profit and loss
account, the group and company balance
sheets, the cash flow statement, the staterment
of tota! recognised gains and losses and the
related notes together with the additional
disclosures relating te the remuneration of
the Directors specified for gur review by the
Financial Services Authority, which have been
prepared under the historical cost convention
and the accounting policies set out in the
statemeant of accounting policies.

Respective responsibilities of Directors

and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements in
aceordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and accounting standards are set out in
the statement of Directors’ responsibilities.

Cur responsibility is to audit the financiaf
statements in accordance with relevant legal
and regulatory requirements, United Kingdom
Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board and the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority.

We report to you our opinion as to whether
the financial statements give a true and fair
view and are properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985. We also report
to you if, in our opinion, the Directers’ report
is not consistent with the financial statements,
if the company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all
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Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the financial statements

disclosed and explained in the financial
staternents.

The Directors have responsibility for ensuring
that the company keeps accounting records
which disclose with reascnable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the
company and which enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the
United Kingdom Companies Act 1985,

The Directors have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the Severn
Trent Plc website is the responsibility of the
Directors; the work carried out by the auditors
dees not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
respansibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since
they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissermninzation of financial
staterments may differ from legisiation in
other jurisdictions.

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

the information and explanations we require
for our audit, or if information specified by
law or the Listing Rules regarding Directers’
remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained

in the annual report and consider the
implications for cur report if we become
aware of any apparent misstaterments or
material inconsistencies with the financial
statements, The other infarmation comprises
only the Chairman’s statement, the Group
Chief Executive's review, the operating and
financial review and the corporate governance
statement.

We review whether the corporate governance
statement reflects the company’s compliance
with the seven provisicns of the Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing
Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all risks
and controls, or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s or group’s
carporate governance procedures or its risk
and control procedures,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial staternents. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and

judgements made by the Directors in the
preparation of the financial statements,

and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate te the company’s circumstances,
consistently appiied and adeguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to
obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the financial
staternents are free frorm material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud

or other irregularity or error. In forming

our opinion we also evaluated the cverall
adequacy of the presentation of information
in the financial staterments.

Opinion

In cur cpinion the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and the group at 31 March 2002
and of the prafit and cash flows of the group
for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Corpanies Act 1985,

S ‘&Lﬁ"“ﬁ\auuv_é
PRICEARTERHOUSE(QOPERS

Chartered Accountants and Registered
Auditors

Temple Court

35 Bull Street

Birmingham B4 €JT

11 June 2002
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Group profit and loss account
Year ended 31 March 2002

2002 2001
{restated)
Notes £m £m
Turnover: group and share of joint ventures 1,799.1 16859
Less: share of joint ventures’ turncver (4.8) (4.3
Turnover 21,7943 1,681.6
Operating costs before goodwill amortisaticn and exceptional costs (1,385.4) (1,290.2)
Goodwill amortisation 3 (26.5) (17.4)
Exceptional contract costs 3 (25.0) -
Exceptional restructuring costs 3 - (15.5)
Total operating costs 3 {1,436.9) (1,323.1)
Group operating profit 357.4 3585
Share of operating profit of jeint ventures and associates 2 9.9 28
Exceptional profit on disposal of business 7 8.0 -
Profit before interest, goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 2 418.8 400.2
Goodwill amortisation 2 {26.%) (17.4)
Profit before interest and exceptional items . 2 392.3 3828
Exceptional costs 2 (25.0) (15.5)
Exceptional profits 2 8.0 -
Profit before interest 2 375.3 367.3
Net interest payable 5 (159.0) (iel.1)
Profit after interest before exceptional items 2333 221.7
Exceptional items (17.0) (15.5)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 216.3 206.2
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities - current tax 6 {16.1) (12.4)
— deferred tax [ (42.3) (52.4)
Total taxation 6 (58.4) (64.8)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 157.9 141.4
Equity minority interests (0.6) 0.4
Profit for the financial year 157.3 1410
Dividends {including non-equity dividends) 8 (157.6) (154.5)
Retained loss for the financial year 20 {0.3) (13.%)
Earnings per share (pence)
Basic 9 459 41.2
Diluted 9 45.7 41.0
Adjusted basic before exceptional items and deferred tax 9 63.2 61.0
Adjusted diluted before exceptional items and deferred tax 9 62.9 60.7

There is no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained loss for the financial year stated above, and

{heir nistorical cost equivalents.

The resuits for the year-ended 31 March 2001 have been restated as a result of applying FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax' (note la).

All items dealt with in arriving at operating profit relate to continuing activities.
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Balance sheets
At 31 March 2002

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
(restated) {restated)
Notes £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets

Intangible assets - goodwill 10 474.8 466.6 - -
Tangible assets 11 4,8918 48156 8.0 7.5

Investments in joint ventures
Share of gross assets 6.0 6.6 - -
Share of gross liabilities (4.6) 5.4) - -
Loans to joint ventures 4,7 38 - -
6.1 50 - -
investments in associates 17.3 17.2 - -
Investments in subsidiaries - - 3,4219 30396
Other investments 5.7 5.4 4.5 36
Total Investments 12 29.1 276 3,426.4 30432

5,395.7 53098 3,434.4 30807
Current assets

Stocks 13 97.2 82.6 - -
Debtors 14 390.5 414.7 44.9 %8
Short-term deposits 19.1 81.0 - 59.2
Cash at bank and in hand 289 350 137.8 511.1

535.7 6133 182.7 520.1

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 15 (1,112.8) (1.4440) (532.8B) (522.6)
Net current liabilities (577.1) (830.7) (350.1) (332.9)
Total assets less current liahilities 48186 44791 33,0843 27182
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (2,042.8) (1,7700) (134.8) {75.5)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 18 (480.4) (418.0) (2.3) -
Net assets 2,2954 22911 2947.2 26427

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 19 224.0 2236 224.0 2236
Share premium account 20 244 20.2 244 20.2
Capital redemption reserve 20 156.1 156.1 156.1 156.1
Profit and loss account 20 1,889.5 18900 2,542.7 22428
Total equity shareholders’ funds 2,234.0 22899 29472 26427
Minority shareholders’ interest (equity) 14 1.2 - -

2,2954 22911 29472 26427

The group and company balance sheets at 31 March 2001 have been restated as a result of applying FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax™ (note 1a).

’\FT‘YI“ e
-

Alan Perelman Group Finance Cirector

Signed on behalf of the Beard who approved the accounts on 11 June 2002,

2D

David Arculus Chairman
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Group cash flow statement
Year ended 31 March 2002

2002 2001
Notes im £m £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities | 242 665.5 617.8
Dividends received from associates and joint ventures 1.2 1.0
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 248 (144.9) (126.8)
Taxation (6.7) (6.4)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 24c (352.1) (365.7)
Acquisitions and disposals 24d - (427.9)
Equity dividends paid {154.1) (153.7)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before use of liquid resources and financing 8.9 {461.7}
Management of liquid resources 24e 62.0 {44.9)
Financing
(Decrease)/increase in debt {(81.5) 515.7
Redemption of shares - .0
lssue of shares 3.4 6.7
24f (78.1) 5133
(Decrease)/increase in cash e {(7.2) 6.7
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
2002 2001
Notes £m im &m Em
(Decrease)/increase in cash (as above) (7.2) 6.7
Cash flow from movement in net debt and financing 815 (515.7)
Cash flow from movement in liquid resources (62.0) 44.9
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 12.3 {464.1)
Net (debt)/cash assumed/relinquished with acquisitions and disposals 24g (8.7) 13.7
Rolled up interest on finance leases {2.2) (14.4)
Currency translation differences (0.7) (6.0}
QOther non cash items (1.9 (0.3}
Increase in net debt (1.2) (471.1)
Opening net debt (2,410.5) (1,939.4)

Closing net debt 243 (2,411.7) (2,410.5)
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Yaar ended 31 March 2002

Group

2002 2001

{restated)

£m £m

Profit for the financial year - group 155.7 1394
- joint ventures 0.6 0.6

- associates 1.0 1.0

Total profit for the financial year 157.3 141.0
Currency translation differences {1.4) 25.7
Goodwill written off to reserves on pre April 1998 acquisition (earn-out consideration) (0.7) -
Goodwill charged to profit on disposal, previously written off to reserves pre Apri! 1998 31 -
Total recognised gains and losses for the year 158.3 166.7

The company had no recognised gains cr losses other than the profit for the year.
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Group Company

2002 2001 2002 2001

(restated} (restated)

Notes £m £m £m £m

Opening shareholders’ funds (2001 as previously stated) 2,289.9 25467 26427 163591
Prior year adjustment la - (266.8) - 73
Opening shareholders’ funds (2001 restated) 2,2899 22801 2,6427 16464
Profit for the financial year (2001 as previously stated) 157.3 1934 458.7 11882
Prior year adjustment la - (52.4) - (5.0}
Profit for the financial year {2001 restated) 157.3 1410 458.7 1,153.2
Dividends (including non-equity dividends) (157.6) (154.5) (157.6) (154.5)
(0.3) (13.5) 3011 998.7

Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year 1.0 25.7 - -
Shares igsued 34 8.7 34 6.7
Redemnption of shares - (9.1} - .1
Net addition to shareholders’ funds 4.1 9.8 304.5 996.3
Closing shareholders’ funds 2,294.0 22839 2947.2 26427

The reconciliation of movements in sharehelders' funds and the statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year ended 31 March

2001 have been restated as a result of applying FRS 19 'Deferred Tax' (note la).
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

a Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with applicabie Accounting Standards

and, except for the freatment of certain grants and coniributions, comply with the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act 1985
{'the Act"). An explanation of this departure from the requirements of the Act is given in the policy on grants and contributions below.

In preparing these financial statements the group has adopted the following Financial Reporting Standards for the first time,
FRS 17 - ‘Retirement Benefits'
FRS 18 - ‘Accounting Policies'
FRS 19 — '‘Deferred Tax'

The group has adopted the transitional provisions of FRS 17, requiring certain additional disclosures, which are set out in note 23,
Full adoption is not required in respect of the Severn Trent group, untii the year ended 31 March 2004.

No changes have been effected to the group’s accounting policies as a result of adopting FRS 18,

FRS 19 introduces a form of full provisioning for deferred tax, replacing the partial provision method previously followed under SSAP 15,

In complying with SSAP 15, the group did not previously provide for deferred tax. As a consequence of adopting FRS 19, the group has

been required to reflect a full provision for deferred tax, and to restate prior year figures. A deferred tax provision of £266.6 miilicn has been
introduced at 31 March 2000 with a corresponding reduction in shareholders’ funds. The tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2001 has
been increased by £52.4 million and the tax charge in the year tc 31 March 2002 by £42.3 million. An additional £5.3 million of goodwill has
2lsc been capitalised in respect of prior-year acquisitions. As permitted by the Standard, discounting has been applied.

b Basis of consolidation

The financial statements include the results of Severn Trent Pic and its subsidiary, joint venture and associated undertakings. The resulis

of subsidiaries, joint ventures and asscciated undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation, and excluded from the
date of disposal. The results of joint venture undertakings are accounted for on a gross equity basts where the company’s holding is 50% and
the compeany exercises joint control under a contractual arrangement. The results of associates are accounted for on an equity basis where the
company's holding is 20% or more and the company exercises significant influence.

¢ Turnover
Turncver represents income receivabie in the ordinary course of business for services providad.

d Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets comprise:

i Infrastructure assets
infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems being mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams
and sludge pipelines.

Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or enhancements of the network and on maintaining the operating
capability of the network in accordance with the defined standards of service is treated as an addition and included at cost after daducting
grants and contributions.

The depreciation charged for infrastructure assets is the estimated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the cperating capability of
the network, after taking account of relevant grants and contributions, based on the company's independently certified asset management plan.

i Landfill sites
Landfill sites are included within Land and Buildings at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of landfill sites is amortised over the estimated life of the site, on the basis of the usage of void space. Cost includes the cost of
acquiring and developing sites but does not include interast. Each landfill site is divided into a number of operational cells; the depreciation
charge is calculated for each individua! celf over its estimated life, on the basis of the usage of the void space within the cell concerned.
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i Other assets
QOther assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation. Freehold iand is not depreciated.

Cther assets are depreciated over their estimated econemic lives, which are principally as follows:

Years
Buildings 30-60
Operational structures 40-80
Fixed plant 20-40
Vehicles, mobife plant and computers 2-15

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commissioned.

e Leased assels

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee
(finance leases), the assets are accounted for as if they had been purchased and the corresponding capital cost is shown as an obtigation to the
lessor. Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the abligation to the
lessor and the finance charge being written off to the profit and loss account over the period of the fease in proportion to the capital amcunt
outstanding. Depreciation is charged over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease period.

All other leases are accounted for as operating leases. Rental costs arising under operating leases are expensed in the year in which they
are incurred.

f Grants and contributions
Grants and contributions received in respect of non infrastructure assets are treated as deferred income and are recognised in the profit
and loss account over the useful economic life of those assets.

In accordance with industry practice, grants and contributions relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed
assets. This is not in accordance with Schedule 4 to the Act, which requires assets to be shown at their purchase price or production cost
and hence grants and contributions to be presented as deferred income. This departure from the requirements of the Act is, in the opinion
of the Directors, necessary to give a true and fair view as. while a provision is made for depreciation of infrastructure assets, these assets do
rot have determinable finite lives and therefore no basis exists on which to recognise grants and contributions as deferred income. The effect
of this departure is that the cost of fixed assets is £224.5 millicn tower than it would otherwise have been (2001: £267.6 million).

Those grants and contributions relating solely to maintzining the cperating capability of the infrastructure network are taken into account
in determining the depreciation charged for infrastructure assets.

g Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less amounts written off,

h Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less provisions necessary to account for any damage and obsolescence. Work in progress is valued af the lower
of cost and net realisabie value. Cost includes labour, materials, transport and an element of overheads.

Development land and properties are included at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of acquiring and develaping
the sites. The net realisable value of development land is based upon its value as a serviced site, after taking account of the cost of groviding
infrastructure services. Turnover and attributable profits on properties under development are determined by reference to valuation of work
carried out to date.

i Landfill restoration costs
Provision for the cost of restoring landfill sites is made over the operational life of each landfiil site and charged to the profit and loss account
on the basis of the usage of void space.

i Environmental control and aftercare costs

Environmental contro! and aftercare costs are incurred over the operational life of each landfill site and may be incurred for a considerabie
period thereafter. Provision for all such costs is made over the operational life of the site and charged to the profit and joss account on the
basis of the usage of void space.

k Insurance
Provision is made for claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet been nctified, based on advice from the group’s external
insurance advisers,
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies continued

i Pension costs

Costs of defined benefit pension schemes are determined by an independent actuary so as to spread the cost of providing pension benefits
over the estimated period of employees’ average service lives with the group. Costs of defined centribution pension schemes are charged
to the profit and loss account in the period in which they fall due.

m Foreign gurrency
The trading results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into sterling using average rates of exchange ruling
during the year,

The net equity interests in overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the
year-end. Exchange differences thus arising are treated as movements in reserves together with exchange differences on loans between group
companies. Exchange differences arising in respect of foreign exchange instruments taken out as hedges of overseas investments are also
treated as movements in reserves.

All other foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities of the company and its United Kingdom subsidiary undertakings are translated
into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the year-end. In those instances where forward cover has been arranged, the forward rate is used.
Any exchange differences so arising are dealt with through the profit and loss acceunt. e

Foreign currency transactions arising during the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
All profits and losses on exchange arising during the year are dealt with through the profit and loss account,

n Research and development
Research and development expenditure is charged to the profit and foss account in the year in which it is incurred. Expenditure on fixed assets
relating to research and development projects is written off over the expected usefut life of those assets.

o Deferred tax

Deferred tax is fully pravided in respect of timing differences betwean the treatment of certain iterns for taxation and accounting purposes.
Material deferred tax balances arising are discounted by appiying an appropriate risk free discount rate. For the purposes of discounting, the
period aver which accelerated capital allowances in respect of infrastructure assets reverse, is determined by the estimated annual cost of
maintaining the operating capability of the network.

p  Goodwill
Goodwiil represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired,

Goodwill arising on ail acquisitions prior to 1 April 1988 remains eliminated against reserves. Purchased goodwill arising on acquisitions
after 31 March 1998 is treated as an intangibie fixed asset in the balance sheet and stated at cost iess accumulated amortisation. Capitalised
goedwill is amartised on a straight line basis over its useful economic life. Useful economiic lives are currently estimated at between 5 and

20 years.

q Euro costs

Costs of preparing systems and cther applications for the introduction of the Euro are written off to the profit and loss account as incurred,
uniess there is a significant enhancement to the system or application, in which case, the costs are capitalised and depreciated in line with
the policy stated in d.

r Derivatives and other financial instruments

Debt instruments

The financial costs of debt instruments are charged to the profit and loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying
amount. Such costs include the cost of issue and any discount to face value arising on issue, or any premium arising on maturity.

Ditferences arising from the movement in exchange rates during the year on transtation inte sterling of the fareign currency harrgwings
and simitar instruments used to finance long-term equity investments. are taken directly to reserves and reported in the staterment of total
recognised gains and losses.

Derivative financial instrumeants

inancial instrurnents, in particular, interest rate and currency swaps, are used to manage the financial risks arising from the business activities

f the group and the financing of those activities. There is no trading activity in financial instrurments. A review of how the financial risks are

anaged is included in the Financial review. Financial instruments are accounted for as follows:

interest rate swaps are used to hedge the group's exposure to movements in interest rates. The interest payable or receivable on such swaps

s accrued in the same way as interest arising on depaosits or borrowings. Interest rate swaps are not revalued to fair value prior to maturity.
currency swaps are used to hedge foreign currency investments. The future currency exchange within such contracts is revalued to the rate

f exchange at the balance sheet date and any unrealised gain or loss is matched with that on the underlying asset or liability in reserves.

“he interest coupon on such swaps is accrued in the same way as that on borrowings and deposits,

he aggregate fair values at the balance sheet date of the hedging instruments described above are disclosed in note 17 to the accounts.

L e
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2 Segmental analysis

a Analysis of turnover and profit before interest by geographical origin and type of business

United Kingdom

Other - principally

USA and Europe Group
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
e O A _Emo  Em Em im
Group turnover
Water and sewerage 899.9 887.2 - - 899.9 8872
Waste management 448.5 353.7 45.3 42.3 494.8 396.0
Services 46.0 49,1 3356 301.3 381.6 3504
Systems 52.1 437 99 263 §2.0 700
Property, Engineering consultancy and Insurance 41.0 926 20 - 43.0 926
Inter segment trading (84.2) (114.0) (2.8) (0.6) (87.0) (1146
1,404.3 13123 390.0 3693 1,794.3 16816
Group profit before interest, goodwill amortisation and exceptional items
Water and sewerage 334.1 3305 - - 3341 3305
Waste management 71.7 41.8 1.3 39 73.0 45.7
Services 1.6 3.9 304 342z 32.0 381
Systems {0.2) 17 {5.9) 7.0 {(5.7) (5.4)
Property, £ngineering consultancy and Insurance 1.5 4.4 - - 1.5 4.4
Unrealised profit on inter segment trading (1.1) 1.0y - - (1.1) {1.0)
Corporate overheads {15.0) {12.1) - - {15.0) (12.1)
3926 369.2 26.2 210 418.8 400.2
Goodwill amortisation 7.3 9.1 (9.2) (28.3) (26.5) (17.4)
Group profit before interest and exceptional items
Water and sewerage 3341 3305 - - 3341 3305
Waste management 55.0 332 1.2 38 56.2 37.0
Services 1.0 3.4 214 26.2 224 29.6
Systems {0.2) 17 (5.8) (7.3) {5.8) (5.6)
Property, Engineering consultancy and insurance 1.5 4.4 - - 1.5 4.4
Unrealised prefit on inter segment trading (1.3) (1.0 - - {(1.1) (1.0}
Corporate overheads {15.0) (12.y - - {15.0) {12.1)
375.3 360.1 17.¢ 227 392.3 3R2.8
Exceptional items
Exceptional contract costs — Systems - - (25.0) - (25.0) -
Profit on disposal of business — Systems - - 8.0 - 8.0 -
Excepticnal resiructuring costs — Waste management - (15.5) - - - (15.5)
- (15.5) (17.0) - (17.0) (15.5)
Group profit before interest
Water and sewerage 334.1 3305 - - 3341 330.5
Waste management 55.0 177 1.2 38 56.2 215
Services 1.0 34 214 26.2 22.4 29.6
Systems (0.2) 1.7 (22.6) {(7.3) (22.8) (5.6)
Property, Engineering consultancy and insurance 1.3 4.4 - - 15 4.4
Uinrealised profit on inter segment trading (1.1} (1.0) - - (11 1.
Corporate cverheads (15.0) (12.1) - - (15.0) (12.13
375.3 3446 - 227 375.3 3673

Turnover by origin and destination do not differ materially.

The basis on which the geographical analysis of Services’ and Systems' results is determined has been modified to more appropriately reflect
the performance of operations by territory. Comparative figures have been amended accordingly.
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Notes to the financial statements

2 Segmental analysis continued

b Joint ventures and associates
: Other - principally
United Kingdom USA and Europe Group

T 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

£m £m £m £m £m im

Share of joint venture's turnover 3.6 35 1.2 0.8 4.8 4.3
Share of operating profit of joint ventures and associates:

Joint ventures 0.9 09 - - 0.9 09

Associates - - 9.0 7.9 9.0 79

0.9 0.9 9.0 7.9 9.9 28

¢ Acquisitions
The profit and loss account and segmental analysis include the foilowing amounts in respect of businesses acquired during the year:

Turnaver Operating profit
Cther - Other -
principally principally
United USA and United USA and
Kingdem Europe Total Kingdom Europe Total
£m im £m £m £m £m
Services 11 6.2 7.3 0.1 1.0 1.1

Services operating profit in the table above is after charging goodwill amortisation of £0.3 million.

d Anzlysis of net operating assets by geographical location and type of business
Other - principally

United Kingdom USA and Europe Group

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2601

(restated)

£m £m £m £€m £m £m

Water and sewerage 4,368.5 42726 - - 43685 42726
Waste managament 2085 2232 241 180 233.0 2422
Services 18.7 20.3 160.3 169.0 179.0 1893
Systems 5.7 69 {16.5) 123 (10.8) 19.2
Property, Engineering consultancy, Insurance and Corporate 274 233 - - 274 233
Net operating assets 4,629.2 45463 167.9 2003 4,797.1 47466

Goodwill:

Waste management 305.2 304.8
Services 169.6 161.1
Systems - Q7
Short-term deposits, cash, borrowings, taxation and dividends payable (2,976.5) (2,922.1)

2,2954 22911
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3 Operating costs

2002

i ol

£m i~

Wages and salaries 376.3 355.0
Social security costs 29.9 3le
Pension costs {note 23) 26.3 23.2
Total emplayee costs 4325 409.8
Power 40.0 408
Raw materials and consumables 145.8 130.8
Rates 56.8 47.0
Service charges 228 216
Waste disposal costs 713 58.4
Other operating costs 283.8 266.6
Cepreciation - on owned assets 219.8 208.3
- on assets held under finance leases 7.5 36

- on infrastructure assets 54.1 539

Amartisation - goodwill 265 174
Hired and contracted services . 124.0 1188
Environmental and landfill restoration costs i 10.0 8.2
Operating lease rental - {and and buildings 10.8 10.2
- cther 59 6.4

Hire of plant and machinery 17.4 113
Research and development expenditure 3.5 34
Auditors’ remuneration — audit work 0.6 0.e
- non audit work 0.8 08
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (2.0} {0.3)
1,531.9¢ 14190
Own work capitalised (95.0) (95.3)
Total operating costs 1,436.9 1,323.1

Exceptional costs included in the above analysis are as follows:

Exceptional contract costs in the year ended 31 March 2002 of £25.0 million, arising in Severn Trent Systems, relate to the costs of completing

onerous software contracts in the USA. The majority of these costs relate to other operating costs.

Excegtional restructuring costs in the year ended 31 March 2001 of £15.5 million relate to the costs of restructuring Bitfa Waste Services

following the acquisition of UK Waste and comprise £4.2 million employee costs and £11.3 miilion other operating costs.

During the year PricewaterhouseCoopers earned the following fees:

2002 200
£m Fi

Inciuded in operating costs above:
Audit fees 0.6 0.6
Non-audit fees 0.8 0.e
Capitalised as part of acquisition costs 0.6 2.3
Total fees 2.0 3.5

It is the group’s practice to employ PricewaterhouseCocpers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where their expertise

and experience with the group are important, for example relating to tax advice and due diligence reporting on acquisitions.
included in auditors’ remuneration is £55,000 (2001: £52,000) in respect of the audit of the company.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out on pages 28 to 32.
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4 Employee numbers

Average number of employees during the year {full time equivalent):

2002 2001
B _ . MNumber Number
By type of business:
Water and sewerage 4,662 4,837
Waste rmanagement 3,904 3,358
Services 4,825 4,686
Systems 641 826
Property, Engineering consultancy, Insurance and Corporate 340 350
14,372 140587
By geographical location:
United Kingdom 9,759 9,417
Other - principally USA and Europe 4613 4,640
14,372 14,057
5 Netinterest payable
2002 2001
o B £m £m
Interest receivable and similar income 4.2 223
Interest payable and similar charges:
Bank !cans and overdrafts (43.2) (110.2)
Other loans (85.8) (38.9)
Interest on discounted provisions 3.0 (1.7)
Finance leases (24.2) (28.3)
(152.0y (1548)
Share of joint ventures {0.2) (0.3)
Share of associates (6.8) (5.0}
(159.0y (161.1)
€& Taxation
a Analysis of charge in the year
2002 2001
{restated)
£m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax - current year at 30% 175 89
- prior year {(5.1) 0.3
Double taxation relief (0.6) 0.5)
Total UK tax 11.8 8.7
Overseas taxation - current year 3.0 3.0
- prior year - (0.2;
Total gverseas tax 3.0 2.8
Total current tax - group 14.8 115
Share of tax charges of - joint ventures 0.1 -
- associates 1.2 0.9
Total current tax 16.1 124
Deferred tax (note 1a)
Qrigination and reversal of timing differences— current yaar 53.3 65.0
- prior year 5.0 -
Increase in discount (22.00 (12.6)
Total deferred tax 42.3 52.4
Total tax charge 58.4 64.8

The group has adapted FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax' in the year ended 31 March 2002 (note 1a). This has resulted in an increase in the tax charge
of £42.3 million in the current year and a restatement of the prior year charge (£52.4 miliion higher than that previously reported).
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b Factors affecting the current tax charge in the year
The current tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (30%). The differences are explained below:

2002 2001
£m £m
Profit an ordinary activities before tax 216.3 2062
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2001: 30%) 64.9 619
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13.6 143
Capita! aliowances for year in excass of depreciation (50.0) (55.5)
Utilisation of/movement in short-term timing differences 8.9) (4.8)
Utilisation of/movernent in tax losses 0.1) 4.7}
Overseas tax rate differences 1.7 11
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods (5.1) 0.1
Total current tax 16.1 24

¢ Factors affecting future rates -

The group’s current tax charge of £16.1 million (2001: £12.4 miilion) represents €.9% (2001: 5.6%) of the group's prefit after interest but
before excaptional items. Due to the changing shape and maturity of the group, the current tax charge as a percentage of profit after interest
tut before exceptional items is expected to increase.

The group's deferred tax charge in future years is more difficult to predict as, in particular, it is impacted by changes in interest rates from
one balance sheet date to the next.

7 Exceptional profit on disposal of business

2002

£m

Gain on disposal of subsidiary net assets 11.1
Goodwill praviously eliminated against resarves (3.1)
Profit on sale of subsidiary 8.0

In May 2001, the group sold Stoner Associates (a wholly owned subsidiary and part of the Severn Trent Systems business) for $26.0 million,
realising a gain of £8.0 million ¢on disposal. No current tax arises on the gain as a result of available tax losses.

& Dividends

_ 2002 _ 2001
Pence Pence

per share £m per share im
Interim dividend declared 17.34 59.5 17.00 58.2
Final gdividend proposed 28.56 98.1 28.00 96.1
45.90 157.6 45.00 154.3
B share dividend paid - - 102 0.2
Total 157.6 154.5
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9 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary sharehoiders by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding those held in the Severn Trent Employée Share Ownership Trust which are treated

as cancelled.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all potential
dilutive ordinary shares. These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price is less than the average markst price

of the company's sharas during the year.

Supplementary adjusted earnings per share figures are presented. These exclude the effects of exceptional restructuring costs in 2001,
exceptional contract costs and profit on disposal of business in 2002 and deferred tax in both 2001 and 2002. The Directors consider
that the supplementary figures provide a useful additional indication of performance.

- ) - 2002 ] ) 2001 (restated)
Weighted Weighted
average average
number Per share number Per share
Eamnings of shares amount Earnings of shares amount
£m m pence £m m pence
Basic earnings per share 157.3 342.8 45,9 140.8 3421 4172
Effect of dilutive options - 1.5 (0.2) - 15 (©.2)
Diluted earnings per share 157.3 344.3 45.7 140.8 3436 41.0
Supplementary earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 157.3 3428 45.9 1408 3421 41.2
Effect of:
Exceptional profit en disposal of business (8.0) - (2.3) - - -
Exceptional contract costs 25.0 - 7.3 - - -
Exceptional restructuring costs - - - 15.5 - 4.5
Deferred tax 42.3 - 12.3 524 - 153
Adjusted basic earnings per share before exceptional items and deferred tax  216.6 342.8 63.2 208.7 3421 610
Diluted earnings per share 157.3 344.3 45.7 140.8 3436 410
Effect of:
Exceptional profit on disposal of business (8.0) - (2.3) - - -
Exceptional contract costs 25.0 - 7.2 - - -
Exceptional restructuring costs - - - 155 - 45
Deferred tax 423 - 12.3 2.4 - 15.2
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before exceptional items and deferred tax 216.6 344.3 62.9 208.7 3436 60.7
10 Goodwili
2002
) 7 7 £m
Cost
At 1 April 2001 as previously stated 487.5
Prior year adjustment (notes la and 21b) 53
At 1 Aprit 2001 restated 492.8
Arising on acquisitions in the year (note 21a) 143
Arising on prior year acauisitions (note 21b) 211
Disposal of business (1.1
Exchange adjustments ©.1
At 31 March 2002 527.0
Amortisation
At 1 April 2001 26.2
Charge for year 26.5
Dispesal of business 0.4
Exchange adjustments (0.1
At 31 March 2002 52.2
Net book value
At 31 March 2002 474.8
At 31 March 2001 restated 466.6
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Group Company
Land and Infrastructure Plant and
buildings assets equipment Total Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2001 18780 27693 23870 7,0343 10.8
Acquisition of businesses 02 - 2.1 23 -
Fair value adjustments (pricr year acquisitions) (1.6) - (3.8) 64 -
Disposal of business - - (16.2) (16.2) -
Additiens 747 1528 1916 4191 1.2
Grants and contributions - (26.9) - (26.9) -
Disposals (11.5) 0.7 (57.7) (69.9) -
Reclassifications and transfers 09 {0.2) (6.5} (5.8) -
Exchange adjustments 0.3) - (0.9) (1.2) -
At 31 March 2002 19404 2,8943 24956 7,330.3 12.0
Depreciation
At 1 April 2001 522.8 775.0 92059 22187 3.3
Charge for year 558 54.1 1715 2814 0.7
Acquisition of businesses - - 0.9 095 -
Disposal of businass - - (10.8) (10.8) -
Disposals (6.7} {07 (39.% 47.3) -
Reclassifications and transfers o - 37N 3.8 -
Exchange adjustments {0.1) - (0.5) (0.6) -
At 31 March 2002 571.7 8284 11,0384 24385 4.0
Net book value
At 31 March 2002 1,368.7 2,0659 14572 4,8918 8.0
At 31 March 2001 13852 19943 14661 48156 7.5
i Included in tangible fixed assets are assets held under finance leases as follows:
2002 2001
im £m
Cost 451.1 4439
Accumulated depreciation (8.0} (50.6}
Net book value 393.1 393.3

i Grants and centributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets in order to show a true

and fair view as set cut in note 1f,

i The net book value of land and buiidings is analysed as follows:

2002 2001
. £m gm
Freehold 1,296.7 12552
Long leasehoid 44.6 70.2
Short leasehold 27.4 29.8
1,368.7 13552

v The net bock vaiue of iand and buildings includes £118.2 million (2001: £125.9 million) in respect of landfili sites,

v Included in the above are the following tangible fixed assets not subject to depreciation:

2002 2001
£m £m
Land 31.2 23.4
Assets in the course of construction 225.3 2242
256.5 247.6

vi At 31 March 2002, the company’s tangible fixed assets comprised freehold land and buildings with & net book value of £6.8 million

{2001: £6.8 million} and plant and equipment with a net book value of £1.2 million {2001: £0.7 million).
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12 fnvestments

Graup
2002 2001
£m £m
investments in joint ventures:
Share of gross assets 6.0 0.6
Share of gross liabilities {4.6) 5.4
Loans 4.7 38
6.1 5.0
Investments in associates:
Share of net assets 14.7 149
Loans 2.6 2.3
17.3 17.2
Other investments 1.2 1.8
Own shares 4,5 3.6
29.1 27.6
Interests in Interasts in Cther Own
joint ventures assocfates  invesiments shares Tatal
Zm £m &m £m £m
Group
At 1 April 2001 50 172 18 3.6 2786
Loans advanced 16 0.3 - - 19
Additions 1.1 - - 1.9 3.0
Loans repaid (0.7) - - - (0.7)
Share of profits 0.6 1.0 - - 1.6
Dividends receivable - (1.2) - - {1.2)
Other movements (1.5 - 0.6) (1.0} 3.1
At 31 March 2002 6.1 17.3 12 4.5 29.1

Interests in joint ventures and associates at 31 March 2002 comprised the group’s share of net assets less provisions, of £16.1 million
(2001: £16.1 million) and leans of £7.3 miilion (2001: £6.1 million). The group's share of the post acquisition accumulated profits of joint
ventures at 31 March 2002 was £1.6 million (2001: £1.0 million). The group’s share of the pcst acquisition accumulated profits of associates
at 31 March 2002 was £0.2 million (2001: cumulative losses £0.8 million). Particulars of the group's principal joint venture and associated
undertakings at 31 March 2002 are:

tssued share capital

Percentage

Mature of of share A ordinary 2 ardinary Other classes

business  capital held sharesof£1  shares cf £1 of shares
Biogeneration Limited Power Generation 50% 500 5C0 -
GMI Rovinian Limited Property Development 50% 25,000 25,000 -
Capital Controls India Private Limited Chlorination Equiprment 50% - - 758,000 equity shares at Rs10/share
Aquafin NV Sewerage Undertaking 20% - - 160,000 shares at 124 Euros/share”
Indagua industria e Gestao de Aguas Water Undertaking 30% - - 300.000 shares at 5 Euros/share”
Cognica Limited Asset Management 50% 100,000* 100,000 -
UKTalks Limited Telecommunication service provider 4599, 1,200 1,152~ -

*Held by the group

The country of incorporation, registration and main operation is Great Britain with the exceptions of Capital Controls India (India), Aquafin
{Belgium), and indaqua (Portugal).

The group financial stetements incorporate a trading period for Aquafin and Indagqua of twelve months 1o their accounting reference date of
31 December 2001.

Interests in own shares represent ordinary shares of 65%:p each held in trust for certain senior employees under the Long Term Incentive Plan.
The main features of the Plan are set out in the Remuneration Committee Report on page 29. At 31 March 2002, the trust held 6€9,320 shares
{2001: 401,262 shares). The market value of these shares was £4.9 million (2001: £2.8 million). The costs of acquiring the shares are charged

to the profit and loss account over the three year period for which the performance criteria are measured.

Details of the principal operating subsidiaries by type of business are set out in note 25. A complete iist of subsidiary undertakings is available
on request to the company.




Subsidiary undertakings  Own shares Total
Shares Loars
£m 77£m £m £m
Company
At 1 April 2001 7106 23290 3.6 30432
Additicns/loans advanced 84 21193 19 2,1298
Loans repaid ~ (1,569.5) - (1,569.5)
Disposals/provisions (175.9) - (1.0) (1769
At 31 March 2002 5431 28788 45 34264
13 Stocks
Group
2002 2001
£m £m
Stocks and waork in progress 67.0 n9.3
Development land and properties 30.2 233
97.2 826
The replacement value of stocks and work in progress is not materialty different from their book vaiue.
14 Debtors
. _Group ... Comeany
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m im £m £m
Trade debtors 253.9 2491 - -
Amaounts owed by group undertakings - - 43.8 79
Amounts owed by asscciated undertakings 0.2 - - -
Corporation tax recoverable 0.7 1.7 - 08
Deferred tax - - - 2.3
Other debtors 31.1 354 0.3 8.0
Prepayments and accrued income 104.6 1285 0.8 0.8
3905 4147 44.9 19.8
Included within group debtors of £320.5 miltion is £10.6 milhion {2001: £11.5 million} which falls due after more than one year.
15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Camgpany
2002 2001 2002 2001
£m &m im £m
Bank cverdrafts 31.2 300 50.8 298
Bank loans 104.4 724.2 265.7 709.6
Other loans 339.2 61.5 - -
Obligations under finance leases 4.7 34 - -
Borrowings (note 17) 479.5 819.1 316.5 7394
Trade creditors 46.2 604 0.4 0.2
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 26.1 -
Other creditors 29.3 369 i4.4 13.0
Taxation and social security 221 313 - -
Corporation tax payable 414 347 8.5 -
Dividends payable 157.8 154.3 157.8 154.3
Accruals and deferred income 336.5 307.3 9.1 15.7
11128 14440 532.8 922.6
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Zzrpany

2002 2001 2002 2001

£m £m £m £m

Bank loans 465.6 570.9 129.4 69.2
Other loans 1,055.7 6778 - -
Chiigations urder finance leases 458.9 4587 - -
Borrowings (note 17} 1,880.2 1,7074 129.4 £9.2
Deferred income 49.5 513 - -
Cther creditors 1313 113 5.4 63
2,0428 17700 1348 75.5

17 Financtal instruments

The group’s policies in respect of foreign currency and interest rate risk management and the related use of financial instruments are set
out in the Treasury management section of the Financial review on page 19.

a Borrowings analysed by currency and interest rate after taking account of various currency and interest rate swaps entered into
by the group

Fixed berrowings

We grted
average
Weighted
Floating Fixed average
2002 interest interest interast
Total rate rate rate
Currency £m £m £m %
Sterting 2,431.7 5373 1,8944 £.19
Euro 28.0 28.0 -
Total barrowings at 31 March 2002 2,459.7 5653 18944
Total borrowings at 31 March 2001 2,5265 7965 17296
Floating rate borrowings bear interest based on LIBOR,
b Investments in interest bearing assets
2002 2501
Currercy ) £m Lm
Sterling depaosits 17.9 734
Euro deposits 1.2 7.6
Total 191 210

Investments in interest bearing assets comprise short-term depesits placed on money markets with a maturity date nct exceeding one year,
and certificates of deposit.

¢t Monetary assets and liabilities by currency, excluding the functional currency

MNet
U3 Dollar gura Other Total
£m im £m £m
Functional currency of operation
Sterling 5.1 (0.1) 0.1 5.1
Total 5.1 0.1 0.1 5.1

Net currency gains arising from monetary assets/{liabilities) not in the functional currency of an operation are recognised in its profit and loss
account. Those arising from the translation of US Dollar and Euro functional currency financial statements into Sterling are recognised in the
staterment of total recognised gains and losses.
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d Borrowings analysed by maturity date

Loans
Repayable by
" instalments
any of which Other
are payable repayment Finance 2002 2001
Qverdratts after five years terms leases Total Total
B £m ) £m £m £m £m im
Group

Borrowings due within one year (note 15} 31.2 - 4436 4,7 4735 819.1

Borrowings due after one year:
Between one and two years - - 120.3 2.7 123.0 134.4
Between two and five years - - 3295 216 3511 3111
After more than five years - 1.7 10698 4346 1,506.1 12619
Total borrowings due after one year (note 16) - 1.7 151986 458.9 1,980.2 11,7074
31.2 1.7 1,963.2 463.6 2,459.7 25265
Loans repayable partly or wholly after five years comprise: . Rate of interest 2002 2001
- % £m £m
European Investment Bank leans - 2008-2009 6.1-6.5 175.0 225.0
Sterling bond (STWUF*) - 2024 €1 297.9 293.0
Sterling bond (STWUF*) - 2029 6.3 413.3 2937
Euro Medium Terrm Notes 35-46 183.6 -
Other loans 39 1.7 28
1,071.5 8195

*Savern Trent Water Utilities Finance Plc

Company

The company has leans and overdrafts totalling £2408.1 million (2001: £808.6 million) which are repayable within five years, and £39.8 million

repayable after more than five years.

e Borrowings facilities

The group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March 2002. 2002 2001
£m £m
Expiring within one year 200.0 90.0
Expiring in more than one but not more than two years - 50.0
Expiring after two years 600.0 600.0
800.0 740.0
In addition, the group alsc has an overdraft facility of £75.0 miilion, of which £43.8 million remains undrawn at the year-end.
f Fair values of financial instruments
Financial instruments by category: 2002 2001
Book value Fair value Book value Fatr value
Asset/(liability) £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the group's operations
Short-term deposits 19.1 12.1 81.0 81.0
Cash at bank and in hand 28.9 289 35.0 350
Borrowings falling due within one year (468.8) (470.0) (8191 (B19.1)
Borrowings falling due after more than one year (1,963.3) (1,962.3) (1,7074) {16367}
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the currency and interest rate profile
interest rate swaps and similar instruments - (21.5) - (27.3}
Currency instrument — cross currency swaps (26.3) {19.6) - -
Currency instrument - investment hedge 1.3) (1.1} - (1.2)
Total net debt (2,411.7) (2,426.5) (2410.5) (2,368.3)
Other long-term assets/(liabilities)
Interest in own shares 4.5 49 3.6 2.8
Other fixed asset investments 1.2 1.2 1.8 1.8

Where available, market rates have been used to determine fair values. When market prices are not available, fair values have been calculated

by discounting cash flows at prevailing inferest rates.

Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the above analysis.
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17 Financial instruments continued

g Unrecognised gains and fosses on hedges at 31 March 2002

Total net

gains/

Gains Losses (tosses)

&m im £m
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 1 April 2001 18.7 (47.2) (28.5)
Arising in previcus years that were recognised in the year - - -
Arising before 1 April 2001 that were not recognised in the financial year 18.7 (47.2) {28.5)
Unrecognised gains and losses arising during the financial year (4.1} 18.0 139
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 31 March 2002 146 {29.2) {14.6)

Expected to be recognised

in one year or less - - -
In later years 146 (29.2) {14.6)

The instruments used for hedging group exposures to maovements in interest rates and exchanges rates are explained in the Financiat Review on
nage 19. Changes in the fair value of instruments used as hedges are not recognised in the financial statements until the hedged pasition matures.

el

18 Provisions for liabilities and charges

a Group provisions comprise the following:

2002 2001
(restated)
£m £m
Deferred Tax 366.3 3243
Other provisions 1141 Q3.7
480.4 4180
The group has applied FRS 19, ‘Deferred Tax' for the first time. Prior year figures have been restated (note 1a).
The group's full deferred tax liability, calculated at a tax rate of 30% (2001: 30%), is:
2002 2001
{restated)
£m Em
Capital allowances 805.1 7500
Tax losses/other timing differences (41.6) {505y
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 763.5 699.5
Discount (397.2) (3752
Discounted provision for deferred tax 366.3 3243
Provision at start of year 324.3 266.6
Ceferred tax charge for year 42.3 52.4
Movernents arising on acquisilion/{disposal} of businesses 0.3 53
Provision at end of year 366.3 3243
Other provisions comprise:
Balance at Chacged to Prior year Balance at
1 April profit and loss fair value Exchange 31 March
2001 account  adjustments  adjustments Utilised 2002
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Environmental and landfill restoration 57.6 10.7 57 - 8.8) 65.2
Restructuring 9.3 0.8 - (0.1 {7.5) 2.5
Insurance 153 8.5 - ~ (6.2) 17.6
Onerous/loss making contracts 11.1 225 30 - (8.7) 27.9
Other 0.4 0.7 - - {0.2) 09

93.7 43.2 27 (0.1} (31.4) 1141

E

As more fully explained in notes 1 i and |, environmental and landfill restoration provisions reflect costs to be incurred over the operational
life of individual landfil' sites and in the case of aftercare costs, for a2 considerable period thereafter. Discounting is applied. Included in the
£43.2 million charge against profitin the current year is £3.0 miltion interest resulting from the use of discounting.

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed programimes. All of the associated outflows are estimated
to cccur within one year of the balance sheet date.
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Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, is a who!ly owned subsidiary of the group. Provisions for claims are made as set
out in note 1k The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to five years from the balance sheet date.

The onerous/loss making contract provision relates 1o specific contractual liabilities either assumed with businesses acquired or arising in
existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues. The associated outflows are estimated
to crystaliise over the relevant contract periods of up to six years from the balance sheet date.

b Company provisions are as follows:

2002 2001
£m im
Deferred tax 2.3 -

The company's deferred tax provision within the group figure above, amounts to £2.3 million {pricr year, debtor of £2.3 million).

19 Called up share capital

2002 2001
£m &m
Total Autherised Share Capital: .
520,175,751 ordinary shares of 65%,p 3395 3395
Total lssued and Fully Paid Share Capital:
343,314,703 (2001: 342,647,070) ordinary shares of 65%.p 224.0 2236

a2 Shares issued during the year

©38,409 ordinary shares of 65%.p were issued at 636p, 676.5p, 674p, 717p, 734.5p, 741p, 732p, 694.5p, 739.5p, 704p, 473p, 568p, 415p

or 732.5p, under the group's Employee Sharesave Scheme and 29,224 ordinary shares of 65%.p were issued at 625p, 497p or 688p under

the group's Share Option Scheme (formerly Executive Share Option Scheme). The aggregate consideration in respect of these allotments was
£4.6 million.

b Employee share schemes

i The Severn Trent Share Schemes (Profit Sharing Scheme)

The issued and paid up share capital of the company includes 672,766 ordinary shares of 85%,p (2001 653,868 ordinary shares of 65%.p)
issued under the Severn Trent Share Schemes, These shares are held in frust on behalf of employees who are beneficially entitled to the shares.

it  Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the Board may grant those employees who have entered into an Inland Revenue approved Save As
You Earn {SAYE) contract for 2 period of three, five or seven years, the right to purchase ordinary shares in the company. Options outstanding at
31 March 2002 were as follows:

Numwer of shares

Date of grant Normal date of exercise  Option price 2002 2001
January 1994 2001 482p - 153371
January 1995 2002 415p 173,618 197,754
January 1996 2001 or 2003 535p 105,705 522873
January 1697 2002 qr 2004 528p 803,527 560,609
January 1998 2001, 2003 or 2005 79%p 227,424 384,225
January 1999 2002, 2004 or 2006 831p 241,791 278646
January 2000 2003, 2005 or 2007 4730 2,621,630 2,903,541
January 2001 2004, 2006 or 2008 568p 1,098,240 1,191 917
January 2002 2005, 2007 or 2009 548p 1,169,951 -

it Approved Share Option Scheme
Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme (formerly Executive Share Option Scheme), the Board has granted Directers and other executives
options to purchase ordinary shares in the company. Options outstanding under this scheme at 31 March 2002 were as follows:

Numnger of shares
Norrmal date of exercise R S

Pate of grant Number aof option holders Qption price 2002 2001
March 1993 5 1996-2003 497p 21,725 32,186
December 1993 30 19%6-2003 625p 139,071 154,303
Jun€ 1998 46 2001-2008 1005%p 88,444 111,518
June 1999 54 2002-2009 934p 75,174 79,168
Jung 2000 30 2003-2010 688p 76,784 78,891
July 2001 42 2004-2011 738p 116,040 -
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19 Called up share capital continued

iv Unapproved Share Option Scheme
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The Board has granted executives options to purchase ordinary shares in the company under an unapproved Share Option scheme. Options

cutstanding under this scheme at 31 March 2002 were as follows:

Normal date of exercise

Number of shares

Date of grant Number of option halders Option price 2002 7200?
June 1998 21 2001-2008 1005p 40,753 43,717
June 199% 68 2002-2009 934p 164,652 163,906
June 2000 75 2003-2010 688p 277,506 286305
July 2001 76 2004-2011 738p 326,235 -
20 Reserves
Share Capital Profit
premium  redemptian and loss
acegunt reserve account
] £m £m £m
Group
At 1 April 2001 as previously stated 202 156.1 2,209.0
Prior year adjustment {note 1a) - - (319.0)
At 1 April 2001 restated 20.2 1561 1,890.0
Retained ioss for the year - - {0.3)
Shares issued 3.0 ~ -
Goodwill written back to reserves on disposal - - 31
Adjustment for shares fssued under Quest scheme 1.2 - (1.2}
Currency transtation differences - - {1.4)
Goodwill written off to reserves on pre April 1998 acquisition (earn-out consideration) - - {0.7)
At 31 March 2002 24.4 156.1 1,889.5
Share Capital Profit
premium  redemption and loss
account reserve account
- _ i B ) ] ] ~ £m £m B £m
Company
At 1 April 2001 as previously stated 20.2 156.1 22405
Prior year adjustment (note la and 18b) - - 23
At 1 April 2001 restated 20.2 1561 2,2428
Retained profit for the year - - 301.1
Shares issued 30 - -
Adjustment for shares issued under Quest scheme 1.2 - 1.2)
At 31 March 2002 244 156.1 2,542.7

The profit attributable to shareholders, deait with in the accounts of the company was £458.7 million (2001: £1,158.2 million). £220.0 million
of the company's retained profit (2001: £1,001.2 million) in the current year arcse as a result of a group restructuring exercise, and is not
considered likely to be distributable. As permitted by Secticn 230 of the Companies Act 1985, no profit or loss account is presented for

the company.

At 31 March 2002 cumulative goodwill written off directly against group reserves amounted to £287.7 million (2001: £290.1 million).
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21 Acquisitions and disposals

a Acquisitions in 2001/2002
During the year, the group acquired interests in the following businesses:

Name of business

Date of acquisition

Services

Ecometrics Ing 1 August 2001
Environmental Systems Technology Corporation 1 Qctober 2001
Sound Analytical Services Inc 1 October 20C1
Clean Environment Engineers Inc 3 November 2001
City Analytical Services Ltd 1 January 2002

All acquisitions were accounted for using the acquisition method.
From the dates of acquisition to 31 March 2002 the acquisitions contributed £7.3 million to turnover and a profit before interest of £1.1 million,

The book value of net assets acquired and their provisional fair value were as foliows:

Accounting  Provisionai

policy fair value

Book value harmonisation total

] £m £m im
Tangible fixed assets 1.5 0.1 1.4
Stocks 0.9 - g9
Debtors due within one year 4.2 - 42
Cash at bank and in hand 0.2 - 0.2
Bank overdrafts (0D - {0.1)
Creditors due within one year (3.1} - (3.1)
3.6 (0.1) 3.5

Consideration — paid 78
- deferred 8.6

- expenses paid 1.0

- expenses deferred 0.4

Total consideration 17.8
Goodwill 14.3

Accounting pelicy harmonisations reflect adjustrments in accordance with group policy.

None of the businesses acquired during the year had pre-acquisition trading results which were individually significant in the context
of the group.

All fair value adjustments above will be reviewed during 2002/2003. Any revision will be accounted for as adjustments to goodwill in that year.
b Acquisitions in 2000/2001

The finalisation of provisional fair values on acguisitions made in the financial year to 31 March 2001 has resulted in additional goodwill
of £26.4 million (of which £21.6 million related to the UK Waste acquisition, see below).

£5.3 million of this additional goodwill (including £5.0 million in relation to UK Waste) has been reflected as a prior year adjustment (note 10}
following the intreduction of FRS 19 and the balance of £21.1 million as an addition during the year,

£4.0 miltion of this goodwill on prier year acquisitions has resulted from additional consideration not accrued (£0.5 million in relation
to UK Waste).




Severn Trant Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2002 56

Notes to the financial statements

21 Acquisitions and disposals continued

UK Waste
The provisional fair value of UK Waste net assets acquired has been reduced by £21.1 million from £88.7 million to £67.6 million, and the costs
of acquisition have risen by £0.5 million, causing goodwill on this acquisition to increase from £291.8 million to £313.4 miilion.

Provisional Prior year Fair value
fair value fair value to the group
2001  adjustments 2002
£m &m £m
Tangible fixed assets 103.7 (5.9) 97.8
Stocks ' 0.7 - 0.7
Debtors due within one year 426 2.1 40.5
Cash at bank and in hand 161 - 16.1
Creditors due within one year (40.13 0.6 (39.5)
Loans and finance leases 2.0 - (2.1}
Provisions for liabilities and charges (32.2} {13.7) (45.9)
887 (21.1) 67.6

Consideration " 380.5 0.5 381.0
Goodwill 2918 21.6 3134
The more significant adjustments to fair value are as follows:
Provisions for liabilities and charges £m
Deferred tax Introduced inte opening balance sheet by way of prior year adjustment

following adoption of FRS 19 (5.0)
Onerous centracts Increased following detailed review 38
Environmental and landfill restoration increased on completion of detailed assessments of cbligations associated

with landfill sites acquired (5.7}

(13.7)

Fixad assets Written down further following completion of valuation/policy alignmant review {5.9)

¢ Disposals in 2001/2002
In May 2001, the group sold Stoner Associates {a whoily owned subsidiary and part of the Severn Trent Systems business) for $26.0 million
(£18.1 million}, realising a gain of £8.0 million on disposal.

£m
Tangible fixed assets 5.4
Goodwill 0.7
Debtors due within one year 4.4
Cash at bank and in hand 0.5
Creditors due within one year 4.9

6.1
Goodwill written off directly to reserves on acquisiticn of business (pre April 1998} 3.1
Profit on disposa! 8.0
Proceeds from disposal (net of £0.9 million expenses of sale) 172

Stoner contributed £1.5 million to group turnover, £0.1 million to operating profit and an operating cash outflow of £0.1 million in the period
prior to its disposal.
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22 Commitments and contingent liabilities

a Investment expenditure commitments

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

In addition to these commitments, Severn Trent Water Umited has longerterm expenditure plans which include investments to achieve
improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services and to provide for growth in demand for water and
sewerage services,

b Operating lease commitments
The group is commitied to making the following payments during the next year in respect of operating leases which expire as follows:

2002 200!

Land and tand ard
buildings Other buildings Other
£m £m £ £m
Within one year 15 0.9 1.1 2.5
Between one and five years i 4.3 0.6 35 0.3
After five years 1.5 - 1.6 -
7.3 15 6.2 28

¢ Bonds and guarantees
Group undertakings have entered into bonds in the normal course of business. The company has entered into guarantees in the normal course
of business. No liability is expected to arise in respect of either bonds or guarantees.

d Bank offset arrangements

The hanking arrangements of the company operate on a pocled basis with certain of its subsidiary undertakings. Under these arrangements
participating companies guarzntee each other's overdrawn balances to the extent of their credit balances. Credit balances can be offset against
gverdrawn balances of participating companies.

e Contingent liability

One of the group's businesses, Severn Trent Systems (‘Systems”) has centinued to experience problems with some CIS-Open Vision contracts
in the USA. One of Systems’ CIS-Open Vision custormers, the City of Portland, has made specific reference to the possibility of litigation and has
fermally stated its intention to make a claim (as yet unquantified) against Systems. It is Systems’ intention to defend this claim robustly and

to continue to pursue with rigour its entittements under this contract. No provision is carried in the group accounts in respect of this claim.
Further informaticon is provided in the Financial Review on page 18,

23 Pensions and retirement benefits

The group continues to account for pension arrangements in accordance with SSAP 24 ‘Accounting for Pension Costs'. Disclosures required
under SSAP 24 are set out in note 23 a below.

in Novemnber 2000, the Accounting Standards Board issued FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits’, which will replace $SAP 24. Full adoption of FRS 17
is not required in the case of the Severn Trent group, until the year ending 31 March 20C4. In the interim, certain additional disclosuras are
required under the transitional provisions of FRS 17, details of which are provided in note 23 b below.

a SS5AP 24 ‘Accounting for pension costs’ - disclosures

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covering the majority of UK employees. The defined benefit
schemes are fully funded to cover future salary and pensicn increases and their assets are held in separate funds administered by the trustees.
An actuarial valuation of each scheme is carried out at regular intervals by an independent professionally qualified actuary.

Tha UK defined henefit schemes and the date of their last formal actuarial valuation arz as follows:

UK defined benefit scheme Date of last formal aci.z-.a! valuation
Severn Trent Water Pension Scheme ((STWPS')* 31 March 2001
Severn Trent Senior Staff Pension Scheme 31 March 2001
UK YWaste Pension Scheme & April 2001
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2000

*The STWPS is by far the largest of the group’s UK defined benefif schemes.
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23 Pensions and retirement benefits continued

Benefits are also provided by the group on an unfunded, unapproved basis to a number of senior staff recruited since June 1989, whose
benefits would otherwise be restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap. Provision is made for such benefits by annual charge against
the group’s earnings.

The group also operates defined contribution arrangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees. !In September 2001, the Severn Trent
Group Pension Scheme (an occupational defined contribution scheme) was established to ensure compliance with stakehclder legislation and
to provide the group with an alternative pension arrangement.

The most recent formal actuaria! valuations of the group’s UK defined benefit schemes were carried out using the projected unit method,
except for the UK Waste Pension Scheme and the Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme, where the attained age method was applied,

as both of these schemes are closed to new entrants.

The cumulative results of these valuations at the above dates (inciuding the unfunded arrangement for senior staff) were as follows:

STWPS Others Total

£m £m £m

Market value of assets . 793.7 161.5 955.2
Present value of schemae liabilities (7448y (1533} (898.1)
Surpluses 489 185 67.4
Deficits - (10.3) {10.3)
Net surplus* 48.9 8.2 57.1

*Ignoring amounts which may or may not be recoverable and deferred tax,

The major assumptions used by the scheme actuary in the most recent valuation of the STWPS (also the weighted average of assumptions
used for the most recent formal valuations of all group schemes) were as follows:

Price inflation 2.5%
Salary increases 4.0%
Pension increases 2.59%
Discount rate 6.0%

Employer’s contributions to STWPS were increased from 1 April 2002 to 14.64%, 12.2% or 7.32% of pensionable pay (previously 12.36%,
10.3% cr 6.18%) of STWPS membaers, Employees’ contributions continue at the rate of 6%, 5% or 3% of pensionable pay.

Employer’'s contributions to STWPS in the year to 31 March 2002 amounted on average to 11.7% of pensicnable payroll. The regular cost

of STWPS to the group in the year to 31 March 2002 amounted to 13.9% of pensicnable payrol! or 10.9% after allowing for amortisation of
surplus. As the difference between the 11.7% contribution rate and the 10.9% SSAP 24 rate is not material, the reduced charge has effectively
been made from 1 April 2002.

The total pension charge for all pension arrangements in the Severn Trent group accounts for the year ended 31 March 2002 after amortisation
of surpluses and deficits amounted to £26.3 million (2001: £23.2 miilion), Amounts carried in the balance sheet in respect of pension costs are
not significant in the context of the group.
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The most recent valuations of the group's defined benefit schemes, details of which are provided above, have been updated by the group's
actuaries so as to reassess the actuarial liabilities and the market values of the assets at 31 March 2002 in accordance with the requirements

of FRS 17,

The weighted average of the major assumptions used by the actuary to calculate scheme liabilities under FRS 17 are:

Valuation method

31 March 2002

Projected unit

Price inflation 2.5%
Salary increases 4.0%
Pension increases 25%
Discount rate 6.0%
The assets and liabilities of the schemes and expected rates of return were;

Long-term rate Total at

of return 31 March

expected at STWPS Other 2002

. _ - ., BtMarch2ooz o Em £m im
Equities 7.75% €07.0 g2.1 699.1
Gilts 5.15% 1473 50.0 197.3
Property €.45%, 21.4 3.4 24.8
Cash 4.50% 10.4 29 133
Total market value of assets 786.1 148.4 9345
Present value of scheme liabilities (758.0) (1460}  (904.0)
Met surplus in schemes before amounts deemed irrecoverable and deferred tax 28.1 24 30.5
Less surplus deemed irrecoverable - (12,4} (12.4)
Total net surplus/(deficit) in schemes before deferred tax 28.1 (10.0) 8.1
Total Net group

recoverablie  Deferred tax total after

surplus/ fiability)l  deferred tax

{deficit) asset £&m

Schemes in surplus 341 {10.2} 23.9
Schemes in deficit (16.0) 48 (11.2)
Total i8.1 (5.4} 12.7

it the above amounts were recognised in the financial statements. the group’s net assets and profit and loss reserve at 31 March 2002 would

be as follows:
2002 2002
Reserves MNet assets
. £m £m
Excluding net pension surplus 1,8895 2,2954
Net pension surplus under FRS 17 12.7 12.7
Net liabilities already recognised in accounts under SSAP 24 reversed 1.9 19
Including net pension surplus 18041 23100

The weighted average employer contribution rate to all group defined benefit schemes (expressed as a percentage of pensionabie payroll)
was 12.0% in the year ended 31 March 2002 and has been increased to 14.5% from 1 April 2002,
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24 Cash flow statement

a Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2002 2001
£m £m
Operating profit 3574 3585
Depreciaticn charge 2814 267.4
Amortisaticn of goodwill 26.5 17.4
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets (2.0) (0.3}
Deferred income received 3.2 1.0
Deferred income written back (3.4) 2.9y
Pravisiong for liabilities and charges 40.2 12.2
Utilisation of provisions for liabilities and charges (31.4) (49.5)
(Increase)/decrease in stocks (18.8) 37
Decrease in debtors 22.4 4.6
(Decrease)/increase in creditors {10.0) 5.7
Net cash inflow from operating activities 665.5 6178

The utilisation of provisions for liabilities and charges inciudes £7.5 million in respect of exceptiortal restructuring provisions charged 1o the
profit and loss account in the year ended 31 March 2001,

b Returns on investments and servicing of finance

2002 2001

- o £m im

Interest received 10.1 22.5
Interest paid (133.0) (137.2)
Nen-equity dividend paid - 0.2)
interest element of finance lease rental payments (22.0) {119
Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance {144.9) {126.8)

¢ Capital expenditure and financial investment

2002 2001

£m £m

Purchase of tangible fixed assets {(401.9) {409.13
Grants received 273 317
Sale of tangible fixed assets 24.6 133
Loans advanced to associates and joint ventures {1.9) (2.3)
Loans repaid by associates and joint ventures 0.7 25
Movemnents in other fixed asset investments 1.0 (0.3)
investment in own shares (1.9 {1.5)
Met cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment (352.1y (3657
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Buok and provisionai
fair value of assets acquired

2002

2001

Acquisitions £m im
Tangible fixed assets 14 li2s
Current assets 5.1 53.3
Liabilities (3.1) (787
Provisional fair value of net assets acquired {excluding net borrowings) 34 89.1
Goodwill - capitalised 14,3 3225
Consideration for businesses acquired 17.7 411.6
Net cash ef businesses acquired 0.1 13.7
Net consideration 17.8 4253
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration relating to current year acquisitions (8.8) (420.2)
Deferred consideration relating to current year acquisitions (8.0) ©.n
- (17.8) (4253)
Cash consideration - as above {8.8) (420.2)
Cash consideration refating to previous years' acquisitions 4.0) {1.4)
Cash settlerment of opening accrued consideration (4.4) (6.3)
(17.2)  (427.9)
Acguisitions have not materiaily impacted on the group's operating cash flow for the year.
Disposals
Proceeds on disposal of businesses (note 21¢) 17.2 -
Total cash flow from acguisitions and dispcsals - (427.9)
e Liguid resources comprise amounts held short-term deposits with a maturity date of less than cne year,
f Financing
2002 2001
£m £m
Loans advanced 725.5 863.3
Repayments of amounts borrowed (806.3) (507.7)
New finance lease funding 0.3 1686
Finance lease capital repaid (1.0) 2.5
(Decrease)/increase in debt {(81.5) 5156.7
Repurchase of shares - B0
Receipts from shares issued net of expenses 3.4 €.7
Net cash inflow from financing (78.1) 5133

g Analysis of changes in net debt

At 31 March Cash  Acquisitions/ Other non Exchange At 31 March

2001 flow disposals cash changes movement 2002

im £m £rn” . %Zm . £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 35.0 {5.8) 0.3} - - 28.9
Overdrafts {note 15) (30.00 (1.4) (0.1} - 03 (31.2)
50 7.2y .4y - 03 (2.3)
Debt due within one year (note 15) (785.7) 350.4 (8.3} - - (443.6)
Cebt due after one year (note 16) (1,248.7y  (269.6) - (1.9 (1.1) (1,521.3)
Finance leases (notes 15 and 16} (462.1) Q7 - (2.2) - (463.6})
’ {2,496.5) 815 (8.3) (4.1) (1.1) {2,428.5)
Short-term deposits 810 (82.0) - - 0.1 19.1
Total (2,410.5) 12.3 (8.7) (4.1 0.7y (2,411.7)
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25 Principal subsidiary undertakings and their Directors

Water and sewerage
Severn Trent Water Limited
2297 Coventry Road
Birmingham, B26 3PU
Telephone 0121 722 4000

Directors

R M Walker I Elliott

B Duckworth JAHill

T DG Arculus G P Noone
J H Bailey F A Osborn
J K Banyard M R Wilson

Waste management

Biffa Plc*

2297 Coventry Road
Birmingham, B26 3PU
Telephone 0121 722 4000
{(Holding company)

Directors

R M Walker N H Manaing
M J Bettington F A Osborn
W R A De Jonghe R B Tate

M C Flower R E Tweedale
TWJ Lowth

Associate Directors

B J Griffiths P T Jones

M L Saville

Biffa Waste Services Limitad
Coronation Road, Cressex
High Wycombe, HP12 372
Telephone 01494 521221

Directors

M J Bettington N H Manning
B J Griffiths M L Savilie

P T Jones R B Tate
TWJ Lowth R £ Tweedale

UK Waste Management Limited
Coronation Road, Cressex

High Wycombe, HP12 372
Telephone 01494 521221
Directors

M J Bettington
TWJ Lowth

R E Tweedalg

Biffa Waste Management Limited
Coronation Road, Cressex

High Wycombe, HP12 372
Telephone 01494 5212721
Directors

M J Bettington
TWJ Lowth

R E Tweedale

Biffa Waste Services SA
Mechelsesteenweg 642, B-1800
Vilvoorde, Belgium

Telephope 003 22251 0198
(incorporated and operational in Belgium)
Directors

M J Bettington T W J Lowth
P Canivet K Smits
NV Retema W Tytgat

(represented by W R A De Jonghe)

Services

Severn Trent Services Inc.

Suite 300, 580 Virginia Drive

Ft Washington

Pennsylvania 19034 2707, USA
Telephone 001 215 646 9201
(Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America)

Directors

R M Walker P K Tandon
R Brydon Jannetia J K Banyard
D L Chester H L Fleming
L F Graziano

Severn Trent (De!} Inc.
300 Delaware Avenue, Suite 1704
Wilmington, Delaware 19801, USA
Telephone 001 302 427 5390

{Holding compary - incorperated and
operational in the United States of America)
Directors

L F Graziano
P P Davies

K J Kelly
J W Whalen (Jr)

Severn Trent Services (Del) Inc.

300 Delaware Avenue, Suite 1704
Wiimington, Delzware 19801, USA
Telephone 001 302 427 5990

(Holding compary - incorporated and
operaticnal in the United States of America)
Directors

L F Graziano
K J Kelly

J W Whalen (ir)
P Winrington

Severn Trent Watzr International Limited
2308 Coventry Road

Birmingham, B2€ 3JZ

Telephone 0121 722 6000

Directors

8 Duckworth A E Roe

JA Hitt R M Walker

B M Horner W G Weatherdon
A Norman

Severn Trent Water International
{Overseas Holdings) Limited
2308 Coventry Rcad
Birmingham, B2¢& 2JZ
Telephone 0121 722 6000
Directors

B Duckworth J A Hili

Severn Trent Envirsnmental Services Inc.
Park 10, 16337 Pzrk Row

Houston, Texas 77384, USA

Telephone 001 281 578 4200
(Incerporated and cperational in the
United States of America)

Directors

[ S Burrowes J A Graziose (Jr)
D L Chester K J Kelly

L F Grazianc
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Capital Controis Limited
Park Lane, Minworth
Sutton Coldfield

West Midlands, B76 9BL
Telephone 0121 313 2300
Directors
M J Ashley R A Henton
Capital Controls Company Inc.
3000 Advance Lane, Colmar
Pennsylvania 18915, USA
Telephone 001 215 997 4000
{Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America)

Directors
D L Chester L F Graziano
HL Fleming K J Kelly

Excel Technologies International Corp.
1110 Industrial Bive, Sugarland
Texas 77478, LUSA

Telephone Q01 281 240 6770
(Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America)

Directors
D L Chester L F Graziano
H L Fleming K J Kelly

Severn Trent Metering Services Lirmited
Smeckley Wood Close

Chesterfield Trading Estate
Chesterfield, S41 9Pz

Telephone 01246 456658

Directors

G G Archibald
A Elder

L f Graziano

Severn Trent Labcratories Limited
STL Business Centre

Torrington Avenue

Coventry, CV4 9GU

Telephone 024 764 21213
Directors

R Brydon Jannetta
AW Gibson

R A Henton

Severn Trent Laboratories Ing,

Suite 300, 580 Virginia Drive

Ft Washington

Pennsylvania 19034 2707, USA
Telephonie 001 215 646 9201
(Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America}

Directors

R Brydon Jannetta
D L Chester

K J Kelly



Environmental Sampling Supply Inc.
9610 San Leandro Sireet, OQakland
California 94603-2322, USA
Telephone 001 510 562 4988
(Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America)

Directors

R Brydon Jannetta KJ Kelly

D LChester

QED Environmental Systems Inc.
6095 Jackson Road, Ann Arbor
Michigan 48103, USA

Telephone 001 734 995 2547
{Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America}

Directors

R Brydon Jannetta KJ Kelly

D L Chester

Systems

Severn Trent Systems Limited”
2800 The Crescent
Birmingham Business Park
Birmingham, B37 7YL
Telephone 0121 717 7755

Directors
R M Walker | P Clark
J M Bassford M Lily

Computer Systems and Applications Inc.
(Trading as Severn Trent Systems Inc.)
Two Chasewood Park

20405 State Highway 249, Suite 600
Houston, Texas 77070, USA

Telephone 001 281 320 7100
(Incorporated and operational in the
United States of America}

Directors

i P Clark M Lily

L F Graziano K J Kelly
Property

Severn Trent Property Limited
2308 Coventry Road
Birmingham, B2§ 3JZ
Telephone 0121 722 6000
(Property development)

Directors

G P Flinge J 5 R Haynes
P A Ludlow V J O'Connell
P P Davies A § Perelman

Daventry International Rail Freight
Terminal Limited

(92.5% owned)

2308 Coventry Road

Birmingham, B26 3JZ

Telephone 0121 722 6000
{Property development)

Directors

P A Ludlow J Jones

J S R Haynes
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Engineering consultancy and Insurance
Charles Haswell and Pariners Limited -
3900 Parkside,

Birmingham Business Park,
Birmingham, B37 7YG

Telephone 0121 717 7744
(Engineering design consultants)
Directors

D J Pickett D R Gutteridge

| Elliott M R Wilsen

Derwent Insurance Limited

PO Box 34, Albert House

South Esplanade, St Peter Port
Guernsey, GY1 4AU

Telephone 01481 715300

(Insurance company - incorporated and
operational in Guernsey)

Directors

G M de Cruz M R Miles
J E Langlois P K Tandon
J C Mann

QOthers

Severn Trent Water Services Plc*
2297 Coventry Road
Birmingham, B26 3PU
Telephone 0121 722 4000
{Holding company}

Directors

R M Walker J A Hili

B Duckworth M R Wilson
P P Davies

Severn Trent Services Holdings Plc®
2297 Coventry Road

Birmingham, B26 3PU

Telephone 0121 722 4000
(Holding company)
Directors

R M Walker

P P Davies

A S Perelman

Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Plc*
2297 Coventry Road

Blemingham, B26 3PU

Telepheone 0121 722 4000

(Holding company)
Directors

R M Walker

P P Davies

A S Perelman

Severn Trent Cverseas Holdings Limited*®
2297 Coventry Road

Birmingham, B26 3PU

Telephone 0121 722 6000

(Holding company}

Directars

P P Davies A S Perelman
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Severn Trent Utility Services Limited
2297 Coventry Road

Birmingham, B26 3PU

Telephone 0121 722 4000

{Utility services company)

Directors

B Duckwaorth D J Jordan
R T Bell J N Myers
J W Bostock P C Wood

Severn Trent Retail Services Limited
2297 Coventry Road

Birmingham, B26& 3PU

Telephone 0121 722 4000

(Retail services company)

Directors
B Duckworth D S Clarson
J H Bailey D P Sherwood

#*Held directly by the company.

Country of incorporation, registration and
main operation is Great Britain unless
otherwise stated.

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned
unless ctherwise indicated. All sharehcldings

are in ordinary shares with the exception
of a preference shareholding in Biffa Plc
and Severn Trent Water Services Plc.

All subsidiary undertakings have been
included in the consoclidation.




Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2002 &4
Five year summary
2002 2001 2000 1999 1958
(restated)
£m £m &m &m &m
Profit and loss account
Turnover: group and share of joint ventures 1,799.1 16859 15802 13786 12556
Less: share of joint ventures’ turnover {4.8) (2.3) (13.6) (14.3) (4.3)
Turnover 1,7943 16816 15666 13643 12513
Profit before interest, goodwill amortisation and exceptional items 418.8 400.2 465.8 463.0 4496
Goodwill amortisation {26.5) (17.4) (6.4 13 -
Profit before interest and exceptional items 392.3 382.8 4594 461.7 449.6
Exceptional items (17.0) (15.9) a7 (110 2.2y
Net interest payable (159.0} (161.1) {1207} (100.3) (73.4)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 216.3 206.2 2740 3504 3740
Current taxation or profit on ordinary activities (16.1) (12.4) (22.1) (46.6) (49.5)
Deferred taxation (42.3) (52.4) - - -
Exceptional taxation — Windfall Tax - - - - (309.6)
Profit on ordinary activities afier taxation 157.9 1414 251.9 3038 145
Equity minority interests {0.6}) 0.4) - - -
Dividends {157.6) {154.5) (154.0) (147.0) {140.00)
Retained (loss)/profit for the financial year {0.3) (13.5) 979 1568 (125.1)
Net assets employed
Fixed assets 5,395.7 53098 47946 43192 38997
Net iiabilities excluding net debt (208.2) (190.2) (212.2) {(351.8) (488.1)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (480.4y (418.0) (96.0) (42.7) (48.9)
4,707.1 47016 448564 39247 33627
Financed by
Calted up share capital 224.0 2235 2317 231.1 2303
Reserves 2,070.0 20663 23150 22148 20501
Total sharehoiders’ funds 2,294.0 22899 25467 24459 22804
Mincrity shareholders’ interest 1.4 1.2 0.3 0.3 Q0.3
Net debt 2,411.7 24105 198394 14785 10820
4,707.1 47016 44864 39247 33627
Statistics
Earnings per share 45.9p 41.2p 73.8p 89.2p 43p
Earnings per share before exceptional items and deferred tax 63.2p 61.0p 92.8p 9z2.4p $5.0p
Dividends per share 4590p 4500p 4500p 43.00p 39.7ep
Final dividend enhancement - - - - 1.36p
Dividend cover (before exceptional items in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
before deferred tax in 2002 and 2001, and before Windfall Tax in 1938) 14 1.4 20 2.1 23
Gearing 105.1% 105.2% 76.1% 60.49%, 4749,
Ordirary share price at 31 March 738p 684.5p 565p 840p 1.050p
Average number of employees — Water and sewerage 4,662 4837 5,144 5276 5.359
- Other 9,710 8,220 7,724 5819 5054

Following the implementation of FRS 19 ‘Deterred Tax', the 2001 figures have been restated (see note 1a). Other prior year comparatives have

not been restated in the above table.




Shares held by category of shareholder
% of total shareholders

B Individual and jcint accounts 92.83%
B Others* 72.17%

Shareholdings
Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2002
Percentage
of total

Zavern Trent Ple Annual Repert and Accounts 2002

Shareholder information

Shares held by category of shareholder
% of total ordinary shares

® Individual and joint accounts 13.09%
B Others* 86.91%

Financial calendar

*Others e.g. insurance companies,
nominee companies, banks, pension
funds, other corporate bodies, limited
and public limited companies.

Announcernent of resuits

Number of  Percentage
ordinary  of ordinary

The results of the group will narmally be published
at the following times:

_Number of - shareholders shares shares |nterim results for the six months to 30 September December
B . | arendlders % ™ Preliminary results for the year to 31 March June
1-499 58,547 60.2% il4 3.3% Report and accounts for the year to 31 March June
500-999 22612 233% 15.5 4.5%,
1,000-4.999 14,471 14.9% 223 6.5%
5,000-9,999 501 0.5% 33 1.0% Dividend payments
T
aver 100000 344 047, 2629 7847, of the year ended 31 Marcn 2002
! ' i i Interim dividend paid 8 Aprit 2002
97,118 100.0% 343.3 100% Proposed final dividend payable 1 October 2002

Annual General Meeting
26 July 2002, 2.30pm at the Royal Centre,
Nottinghamn

Registrars

Lloyds TSB Registrars

The Causeway

Worthing

West Sussex BNSS 6DA
Telephone 0870 600 3967

Severn Trent Plc

Registered number: 2366619
Registered office:

2297 Coventry Road
Birmingham B2& 3Pl
Telephone 0121 722 4000

Shareview

www.shareview.co.uk is a service offered by
Lloyds TSB Registrars that enables you to
check your heoldings in many UK companies
and helps you to organise your investments
electronically. You can register for this
portfolio service, which is easy o use,
secure and freg, by logging onto
www.shareview.co.uk and following a simple
registration process.

Electronic proxy appointments

For the Annual General Meeting to be

held on 26 Juty 2002 you may. if you
wish, register the appointment of a proxy
electronically by logging onto the website
www.sharevote.co.uk. You will need your
vating reference numbers (the three 8 digit
nurmbers shown on your form of proxy).

Alternatively if you have registered for a
Shareview portfolio, log onto your portfolio
at www.shareview.co.uk and click on
Company Meetings.

Please note that any electronic
communication that is found to ¢ontain
a computer virus will not be accepted,

Forward-looking statements

This document contains certain ‘forward-
looking statements’ with respect to Severn
Trent's financial condition, results of
operations and business and certain of
Severn Trent’s plans and cbjectives with
respect to these items.

Forward-locking statements are sometimes,
but not always, identified by their use of
a date in the future or such words as

‘anticipates’, ‘aims’, ‘due’, ‘could’, ‘may’,
‘'should’, ‘expects’, ‘believes’, 'intends’,

‘plans’, ‘targets’, ‘goal’ or ‘estimates’. By

their very nature forward-locking statements
are inherently unpredictable, specufative and
involve risk and uncertainty because they
refate to events and depend on circumstances
that will occur in the future.

There are a number of factors that could
cause actual results and developments to
differ materially from those expressed or
impiied by these forward-looking statements.
These factors include, but are not limited to,
changes in the regulatory framework in which
Severn Trent operates; the impact of legal

or other proceedings against Severn Trent

or other companies in the environmental
services industry; and changes in interest
and exchange rates.

All subsequent written or verbal forward-
looking statements aftributable to Severn
Trent or any member of the Severn Trent
group or persons acting on their behalf
are expressly qualified in their entirety by
the factors referred to above. Severn Trent
does not intend o update these forward-
iooking staternents.




For copies of the following publications
call +44 (0)121 722 400C

Severn Trent Pic
Annuai Review 2002
Stewardship 2002

Severn Trent Water

Annual Report and Accounts 2002
{including Regutatory Accounts)
Sustainability

Biodiversity Action Plan
Conservation Access Recreation
and Education Report

Bifta

Envircnment Report

Book 4 - ‘A Question of Balance’
Biffa & Biodiversity

Severn Trent Plc
2297 Coventry Road
Birmingham B26 3PU
United Kingdom

Telephone +44 (0y121 722 4000

We are mindful of the environmental impact
of the production of cur report and accounts
dacuments and seek to minimise the resources
used wherever possibie.

The paper used, Zanders Megamatt, is
produced using chlorine free processes from
50% recycled pre and post consumer waste.
It is certified to the Mordic Swan Standard,
which requires products to mest a strict
ranige of standards.

In addition the printing process is taken into
account - this report is printed by WACE who
operate an Environmental Management System
certified to 1SO 14001.

L

But as a shareholder you too can ‘do your bit'.
If you currently receive the full Annual Report
and Accounts why nat consider switching to
the Annual Review only? You can heip us
reduce our use of paper, and costs, as well
as making your contribution to protecting
the environment, Please call Lioyds TSB
Registrars on 0870 €00 3967 to request

the Annual Review only.

You can stit view or obtain @ copy of the
full Annual Report and Accounts on-line
at www.severntrent.com/reports2002

Designed, typeset and produced by CGi BrandSense
Printed by WACE




